
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
VIRTUAL MEETING – ZOOM  

https://www.youtube.com/c/WinnebagoCountyIL/live  
(WINNEBAGO COUNTY YOU TUBE LIVE) 

 
Thursday, December 22, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance .......................................... Board Member Angie Goral 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation  

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of November 22, 2022 minutes  
B. Layover of December 8, 2022 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State’s Attorneys Appellate 

Prosecutor’s Program 

https://www.youtube.com/c/WinnebagoCountyIL/live
https://www.youtube.com/c/WinnebagoCountyIL/live


www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

3. Resolution to Approve Purchase of Vehicle for ESDA Coordinator with ARPA Funds 
4. Resolution to Fund Water Resources Strategic Plan with ARPA Phase IV Funds 
5. Resolution to Fund Baker Tilly Professional Services for River Bluff Nursing Home 

 
B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 
1. Committee Report                    

 
C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Granting Authority to the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute 

the Documents Necessary to Complete a Loan for $100,000 from the Revolving Loan 
Fund to Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. 

3. Resolution Abating Property Taxes on Property Located at 6164 All World Way, Roscoe, 
Illinois Specifically Identified as Property Index Number 04-15-300-020 and Commonly 
Known as All World Machinery Supply, Inc. 

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Annual Fire Alarm Inspection Services 
3. Resolution Approving Emergency Agreement With Terracon 
4. Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances 

Regarding Registration Fees for Dogs and Cats to be Laid Over 
5. Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4 of the Winnebago County Code 

Relating to the Rules of Procedure of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois to be Laid Over 

                  
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. (22-039) Resolution Authorizing the Approval of a Change in Plans to Reconcile Bid 

Quantities with As-built Quantities for Charles Street Resurfacing from Alpine Road to 
Mulford Road (Section: 21-00687-00-RS)  
Cost:  $(27,232.83) Deduction    C.B. District:  15 

3. (22-040) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement 
Between the County of Winnebago, The City of South Beloit, The Village of Winnebago 
and Rockford Township for the Coordination of a SPR Grant  
Total Cost:  $668,900 
County Cost:  $00.00     C.B. District:  County Wide 
Federal Funds: $535,120 
State Funds:  $133,780 

4. (22-041) Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Skid Steer Loader  
Cost:  $74,718.61      C.B. District:  County Wide 

5. (22-042) Resolution for Award of Maintenance of Traffic Signals on the County Highway 
System and the Appropriation of MFT Funds (Section: 22-00711-00-TL) 
Cost:  $562,990      C.B. District:  County Wide 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

6. (22-043) Resolution Authorizing the Approval of a Change in Plans to Reconcile Bid 
Quantities with As-Built Quantities for Latham Road Resurfacing from Meridian Road 
to Owen Center Road  
(Section: 21-00700-00-RS)  
Cost:  $(83,440.59) Deduction     C.B. District:  1 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, January 12, 2023 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 











 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  December 15, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State’s Attorneys 

Appellate Prosecutor’s Program 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date:    December 22, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   Yes                       Appropriation Amount:   $41,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                          Budget Impact:  None 

 
Background Information: The Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created 
to provide services to the State’s Attorneys in Counties containing fewer than 3,000,000 
inhabitants. The funding for the Office is funded two-thirds by the State and one-third from the 
respective Counties that allocate funds. The Office provides various services to the State’s 
Attorney’s Office including filing of appellate briefs for appeals, assistance in the prosecution of 
certain drug cases, labor negotiations, and tax objections. These services are based on the 
request of the State’s Attorney. The allocated amount for the County is $41,000 and is budgeted 
each year in the State’s Attorney’s budget.  
 
Due to severe Agency procurement/supply chain constraints, the Board of Governors of the 
State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor voted unanimously to keep the payment categories the 
same as the prior period. 
 
Recommendation: Continue to fund the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s Program  
 
Contract/Agreement: Invoice from the State for $41,000 
 
Legal Review:  Request for funding submitted from the State’s Attorney’s Office  
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



Sponsored By:  John Butitta                                                  County Board Meeting: December 22, 2022 

 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

2022 CR _______ 

 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  

 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING COUNTY CONTRIBUTION FOR STATE’S 

ATTORNEYS APPELLATE PROSECUTOR’S PROGRAM 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created to 

provide services to State’s Attorneys in Counties containing fewer than 3,000,000 inhabitants; 

and 

WHEREAS, the powers and duties of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 

Prosecutor are defined and enumerated in the “State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s Act,” 

725 ILCS 210/1, et seq. as amended; and 

WHEREAS,  the Illinois General Assembly appropriates monies for the ordinary and 

contingent expenses of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor, one-third from 

the State’s Appellate Prosecutor’s County Fund and two-thirds from the General Revenue Fund, 

provided that such funding receives approval and support from respective Counties eligible to 

apply; and 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor shall administer 

the operation of the appellate offices so as to insure that all participating State’s Attorneys 

continue to have final authority in preparation, filing, and arguing of all appellate briefs and any 

trial assistance. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, in regular session, this 22nd day of December, 2022, does hereby support the 

continued operation of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and designates 

the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutors as its Agent to administer the operation 

of the appellate offices and process said appellate court cases for the County. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of the 

State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor are hereby authorized to act as Assistant State’s 

Attorneys on behalf of the State’s Attorney of the County of Winnebago in the appeal of all 

cases when requested to do so by the State’s Attorney, and with the advice and consent of the 

State’s Attorney prepare, file, and argue appellate briefs for those cases; and also, as may be 



requested by the State’s Attorney, to assist in the prosecution of cases under the Illinois 

Controlled Substances Act, the Cannabis Control Act, the Drug Asset Forfeiture Procedure Act 

and the Narcotics Profit Forfeiture Act. Such attorneys are further authorized to assist the State’s 

Attorney in the State’s Attorneys duties under the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, including 

negotiations thereunder, as well as in the trial and appeal of tax objections. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 

Prosecutor will offer Continuing Legal Education training programs to the State’s Attorneys and 

Assistant State’s Attorneys.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of the 

State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor may also assist the States Attorney of the County of 

Winnebago in the discharge of the State’s Attorneys duties in the prosecution and trial of other 

cases, and may act as Special Prosecutor if duly appointed to do so by a court having 

jurisdiction. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 

Prosecutor is duly appointed to act as Special Prosecutor in the County of Winnebago by a court 

having jurisdiction to do so, the County will provide reasonable and necessary clerical and 

administrative support on an as-needed basis. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago 

hereby agrees to participate in the service program of the Office of the State’s Attorneys 

Appellate Prosecutor for Fiscal Year 2023, commencing December 1, 2022 and ending 

November 30, 2023, by hereby appropriating the sum of $41,000.00 as consideration for the 

express purpose of providing apportion of the funds required for financing the operation of the 

Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and agrees to deliver the same to the Office 

of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor on request during the Fiscal Year 2023. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 

authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 

State’s Attorney and to the Director of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AGREE  DISAGREE 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

John Butitta, Chairman John Butitta, Chairman 

________________________________         ___________________________________ 

Jaime Salgado   Jaime Salgado 

________________________________         ___________________________________ 

Jean Crosby   Jean Crosby 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Keith McDonald  Keith McDonald 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Joe Hoffman    Joe Hoffman 

________________________________         ___________________________________ 

John F. Sweeney  John F. Sweeney 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Michael Thompson  Michael Thompson 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, this ____ day of ___________________, 2022. 

________________________________ 

Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 

     County Board of the  

     County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTEST: 

______________________________  

Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   

County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois 





 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:   Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office  

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    December 15, 2022 

Resolution Title:  RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF VEHICLE FOR ESDA COORDINATOR 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  December 22, 2022 

Budget Information: 
 
Was item budgeted?    Yes -  ARP Funded               Appropriation Amount:   $54,980.00 

Baker-Tilly ARP Compliance Review:  completed and approved 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  61300 – 46410 – RP073   Budget Impact:   None - using ARP funds  

 
Background Information:   
The Sheriff’s Office is requesting a vehicle for the ESDA Coordinator with ARP funds.   

 
Recommendation:  
Sheriff Gary Caruana has approved the request to purchase this vehicle. 
 
Baker Tilly: 
Approved the purchase as ARP compliant. 
 
Follow-Up:    
Vehicle will be ordered once approved.  We have been told by the dealership that it will be 
approximately 26 to 28 weeks to get the vehicles. 



 
County Board Meeting: December 22, 2022 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Finance Committee 

2022 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF VEHICLE FOR ESDA COORDINATOR 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff requests a County vehicle for the ESDA 

Coordinator with ARP funds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the Pricing Summary for Illinois Government Agency, received for the 
aforementioned vehicle and recommends awarding as proposed; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has determined that the funding for the 
aforementioned purchase shall be paid as follows: 

 
61300 – 46410 - RP073 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

that the County is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, a Purchase Order 
to MORROW BROTHERS FORD, INC., 1242 MAIN STREET, GREENFIELD, ILLINOIS, 62044 in the 
amount of $54,980.00, as set forth in Resolution Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Sheriff, 
Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN  

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Pricing Summary - Single Vehicle

MSRP

Vehicle Pricing $57,030.00

Subtotal $57,030.00

Discount Adjustments

Discount Adjustments -$2,050.00

Total $54,980.00

Customer Signature Acceptance Date

1

RESOLUTION  EXHIBIT A



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

As Configured Vehicle
Code Description MSRP

Base Vehicle

U1G Base Vehicle Price (U1G) $55,955.00

Powertrain

998 Engine: 3.5L EcoBoost V6 Included

44U Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic
w/SelectShift

Included

STDGV GVWR: 7,450 lbs Included

Seats & Seat Trim

L Cloth Front Captain's Chairs Included

5-passenger seating. Includes 8-way power driver seat (power function for tilt and lumbar, manual
recline), 4-way manual passenger seat (fore/aft, recline) and 2-way manually adjustable head
restraints.

Other Options

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD

122WB 122" Wheelbase STD

STDRD Radio: AM/FM Stereo w/MP3
Capable

Included

Includes speed-compensated volume and 6 speakers.

52L Auto Start-Stop Removal -$50.00

Required option.

41H Engine Block Heater $100.00

Emissions

425 50 States Emissions System STD

Exterior Color

UM_03 Agate Black Metallic N/C

Interior Color

2



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description MSRP

LH_02 Black Onyx w/Cloth Front Captain's
Chairs

N/C

Fleet Options

102A Equipment Group 102A SSV
Package

-$2,080.00

Includes:
- Engine: 3.5L EcoBoost V6
- Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic w/SelectShift
- ControlTrac w/3.73 Axle Ratio
  Includes eLSD (Electronic Limited-Slip Differential).
  - 2-Speed Automatic 4WD
  Includes neutral towing capability.
- GVWR: 7,450 lbs
- Cloth Front Captain's Chairs
  5-passenger seating. Includes 8-way power driver seat (power function for tilt and lumbar, manual
recline), 4-way manual passenger seat (fore/aft, recline) and 2-way manually adjustable head
restraints.
- Radio: AM/FM Stereo w/MP3 Capable
  Includes speed-compensated volume and 6 speakers.
- Column Shifter
- Vinyl Floor Covering
- Vinyl 2nd Row Seating
- Skid Plates
- Center Console Delete
  Deletes armrest and covered media bin.
- USB Port Delete
  Deletes second row smart charging USB port - one (1) A and one (1) C in the back side of the
center floor console.
- Manual Telescoping Steering Wheel Delete
- Push Button Keyless Start Delete

62E ControlTrac w/3.73 Axle Ratio Included

Includes eLSD (Electronic Limited-Slip Differential).

Includes:
- 2-Speed Automatic 4WD
  Includes neutral towing capability.

NONTR2 Tires: P275/65R18 AT OWL w/536 Included

64X Wheels: 18" Machined-Face
Aluminum w/536

Included

Includes magnetic-painted pockets.

21B 2nd Row 40/20/40 Cloth Bench Seat $110.00

40/20/40 bench is the standard second row seat. The cloth feature is optional.

18B Black Platform Running Boards $405.00

536 Heavy-Duty Trailer Tow Package $795.00

3



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description MSRP

Includes:
- Wheels: 18" Machined-Face Aluminum w/536
  Includes magnetic-painted pockets.
- Tires: P275/65R18 AT OWL w/536
- 26mm Engine Radiator
- Integrated Trailer Brake Controller
- Pro Trailer Backup Assist
- Rear View Digital Camera
- Reverse Brake Assist

SUBTOTAL $55,235.00

Destination Charge $1,795.00

TOTAL $57,030.00

4



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs
Dimensions

* Conventional Capacity: 9,200 lbs. * GCWR: 15,500 lbs.

• Vehicle body length: 210" • Vehicle body width: 80"

• Vehicle body height: 76" • Rear door opening height: 33"

• Rear door opening width: 51" • Wheelbase: 122"

• Front track: 68" • Rear track: 67"

• Vehicle turning radius: 20' • Front brake diameter: 13.0"

• Rear brake diameter: 13.5" • Interior cargo volume: 64 cu.ft.

• Interior cargo volume with seats folded: 64 cu.ft. • Max interior cargo volume: 105 cu.ft.

• Headroom first-row: 42.0" • Headroom second-row: 40.0"

• Leg room first-row: 43.9" • Leg room second-row: 41.5"

• Shoulder room first-row: 64.9" • Shoulder room second-row: 64.8"

• Hip room first-row: 62.2" • Hip room second-row: 62.6"

Powertrain
• 3.5L V-6 port/direct injection, DOHC, variable valve

control, twin turbo, engine with 380HP
• Engine cylinders: V-6

• Spark ignition system • Horsepower: 380 HP@5000  RPM

• Torque: 470 lb.-ft.@2250 RPM * Engine block heater

• Radiator • Auto stop-start engine

• Driver selectable drivetrain mode • 10-speed automatic

* Control-Trac automatic full-time 4WD • Four-wheel drive

• Recommended fuel: regular unleaded • Easy Fuel capless fuel filler

* Electro-mechanical limited slip differential • All-speed ABS and driveline traction control

• Auto locking hub control • Electronic transfer case shift

Fuel Economy and Emissions
• LEV3-ULEV50 emissions

Suspension and Handling
• Standard ride suspension • Gas-pressurized front shock absorbers

• Gas-pressurized rear shock absorbers

Driveability
• 4-wheel disc brakes • Front and rear ventilated disc brakes

• 4-wheel antilock (ABS) brakes • Four channel ABS brakes

• Electronic parking brake • Ford Co-Pilot360 - Post Collision Braking automatic
post-collision braking system

• Automatic brake hold • Brake assist system

• Hill descent control • Hill start assist

5



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
• Independent front suspension • Double wishbone front suspension

• Front anti-roll bar • Front coil springs

• Independent rear suspension • Multi-link rear suspension

• Rear anti-roll bar • Speed sensitive power steering

• Electric power-assist steering system • Rack-pinion steering

• Driver selectable steering effort • 2-wheel steering system

Body Exterior
• Trailer wiring harness * Pro Trailer Backup Assist trailer backup assist

• Running boards • 4 doors

• Roof rails • Clearcoat paint

• Monotone paint • Black bodyside cladding

• Stainless steel side window trim • Black windshield trim

• Body-coloured door handles • Body-coloured front bumper

• Grey front bumper rub strip • Body-coloured rear bumper

• Rear bumper step • Grey rear bumper rub strip

• Black grille with chrome surround • Black door mirrors

• Standard style side mirrors • Conventional left rear passenger door

• Conventional right rear passenger door • Liftgate rear cargo door

• Active grille shutters * P275/65RH18 AS BSW front and rear tires

• 18 x 8.5-inch front and rear machined w/painted
accents aluminum wheels

Convenience
• Power door locks with 2 stage unlocking • Keyfob activated door locks

• All-in-one remote fob and ignition key • Auto-locking doors

• Power tailgate/rear door lock • Cruise control with steering wheel mounted controls

• Smart device engine start control • Day/Night rearview mirror

• Power first-row windows • Rear window cargo access keyfob release

• Fixed interval rear windshield wipers • Rear window defroster

• Flip-up rear windshield • Locking glove box

• Front beverage holders • Rear beverage holders

• 15 beverage holders • Driver and passenger door bins

• Rear door bins • Dashboard storage

• Retained accessory power • PRND in IP

• Trip computer • Over the air updates

Comfort
• Automatic climate control • Dual-zone front climate control

• Rear climate control system with separate controls • Cabin air filter

• Rear under seat climate control ducts • Auxiliary rear heater

6



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
• Rear headliner/pillar climate control ducts • Cloth headliner material

• Full headliner coverage • Vinyl door trim insert

* Full vinyl floor covering • Full floor coverage

• Cloth rear seat upholstery • Carpet rear seatback upholstery

• Manual tilting steering wheel • Leather steering wheel

Seats and Trim
• Seating capacity: 5 • Bucket front seats

• Driver seat with 8-way directional controls • Front passenger seat with 4-way directional controls

• Height adjustable front seat head restraints • Manual front seat head restraint control

• Manual reclining driver seat • Power height adjustable driver seat

• Power driver seat fore/aft control • Power driver seat cushion tilt

• Manual reclining passenger seat • Manual passenger seat fore/aft control

• Fixed rear seats • Split-bench rear seat

• Rear seats with manual fore and aft • Foldable rear seat head restraints

• Driver seat with 2-way power lumbar • Cloth front seat upholstery

• Metal-look console insert

Entertainment Features
• 2 total number of 1st row displays • 8 inch primary LCD display

• Primary monitor touchscreen • AM/FM/Satellite-prep radio

• Seek scan • Radio data system (RDS)

• Auxiliary input jack • SYNC 4 external memory control

• Speakers number: 6 • Standard grade speakers

• Steering wheel mounted audio controls • SYNC 4 with Enhanced Voice Recognition voice
activated audio controls

• Speed sensitive volume • Bluetooth wireless audio streaming

• Window grid audio antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation
• Digital/analog instrumentation display • Trip odometer

• In-radio display clock • Compass

• Exterior temperature display • Vehicle systems monitor

• Gauge cluster display size (inches): 8.00 • Tachometer

• Oil pressure gauge • Engine/electric motor temperature gauge

• Voltmeter • Deep tinted windows

• Aero-composite headlights • LED low and high beam headlights

• Auto on/off headlight control • Multiple enclosed headlights

• Delay-off headlights • Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam
headlights

• DRL preference setting • Variable intermittent front windshield wipers

7



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
• Speed sensitive wipers • Front reading lights

• Illuminated entry • Rear reading lights

• Variable instrument panel light • Daytime running lights

• High mounted center stop light • Remote activated perimeter approach lighting

• Fade interior courtesy lights

Technology and Telematics
• SYNC 4 Connected Navigation integrated navigation

system with voice activation
• SiriusXM Traffic real-time traffic

• Travel Link real-time weather • SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency SOS system via
mobile device

• SYNC 4 handsfree wireless device connectivity • SYNC 4 AppLink/Apple CarPlay/Android Auto smart
device mirroring

• FordPass Connect 4G mobile hotspot internet
access

* 1 USB port

Safety and Security
• Driver front impact airbag • Seat mounted side impact driver airbag

• Safety Canopy System curtain first, second and
third-row overhead airbags

• Passenger front impact airbag

• Seat mounted side impact front passenger airbag • Airbag occupancy sensor

• 6 airbags • Rear seat center 3-point seatbelt

• Front height adjustable seatbelts • Front seatbelt pretensioners

• 2  seatbelt pre-tensioners • SecuriLock immobilizer

• Remote panic alarm • Vehicle tracker

• Security system • Lane Keeping Alert

• Ford Co-Pilot360 - BLIS (Blind Spot Information
System)

• Ford Co-Pilot360 - Pre-Collision Assist with
Pedestrian Detection

* Ford Co-Pilot360 - Reverse Brake Assist
collision mitigation

• Ford Co-Pilot360 - Pre-Collision Assist with
Pedestrian Detection

• Ford Co-Pilot360 - Driver Alert • Following distance alert

• MyKey restricted driving mode * High Resolution Digital Camera rear mounted
camera

• Electronic stability control system with anti-roll • Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

• Manual rear child safety door locks

Dimensions

General Weights
Curb weight 5,623 lbs. Rear curb weight 2,779 lbs.
GVWR 7,450 lbs. Payload 1,700 lbs.

Trailering Weights

8



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
* Conventional capacity 9,200 lbs. * GCWR 15,500 lbs.

Front Weights
Front curb weight 2,913 lbs. GAWR front 3,450 lbs.

Rear Weights
GAWR rear 4,380 lbs.

Off Road
Min ground clearance 9.8" Loading floor height 35.3 "
Approach angle 23.3 Departure angle 21.9

Exterior Measurements
Vehicle body length 210" Vehicle body width 80"
Vehicle body height 76" Rear door opening height 33"
Rear door opening width 51" Wheelbase 122"
Front brake diameter 13.0" Rear brake diameter 13.5"
Front track 68" Rear track 67"
Vehicle turning radius 20'

Interior Measurements
Interior cargo volume 64 cu.ft. Max interior cargo volume 105 cu.ft.
Interior cargo volume with seats folded 64 cu.ft.

Headroom
Headroom first-row 42.0" Headroom second-row 40.0"

Legroom
Leg room first-row 43.9" Leg room second-row 41.5"

Shoulder Room
Shoulder room first-row 64.9" Shoulder room second-row 64.8"

Hip Room
Hip room first-row 62.2" Hip room second-row 62.6"

Powertrain

Engine
Engine 3.5L V-6 port/direct injection, DOHC,
variable valve control, twin turbo, engine
with 380HP

Valves per cylinder 4

Engine cylinders V-6 Engine location Front mounted engine
Ignition Spark ignition system Engine mounting direction Longitudinal mounted

engine
Engine block material Aluminum engine block Cylinder head material Aluminum cylinder head

Engine Specs

9



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Displacement 3.5L cc 213.3 cu.in.
Bore 3.64" Stroke 3.41"
Compression ratio 10.5

Engine Power
Horsepower 380 HP@5000  RPM Torque 470 lb.-ft.@2250 RPM

Alternator
Alternator amps 150A Alternator type Regular duty alternator

Battery
Battery amps 72Ah Battery type Lead acid battery
Battery rating 675CCA Battery run down protection Battery run down

protection

Engine Extras

* Block heater Engine block heater Radiator Radiator

Start-stop engine Auto stop-start engine Drivetrain selectable Driver selectable drivetrain
mode

Transmission
Transmission 10-speed automatic Transmission electronic control Transmission

electronic control
Overdrive transmission Overdrive transmission Lock-up transmission Lock-up transmission
First gear ratio 4.696 Second gear ratio 2.985
Third gear ratio 2.146 Fourth gear ratio 1.769
Fifth gear ratio 1.52 Sixth gear ratio 1.275
Reverse gear ratio 4.866 Seventh gear ratio 1
Eighth gear ratio 0.854 Ninth gear ratio 0.689
Tenth gear ratio 0.636 Selectable mode transmission Selectable mode

transmission
Sequential shift control SelectShift Sequential
shift control

Transmission oil cooler Transmission oil cooler

Drive Type

* 4WD type Control-Trac automatic full-time
4WD

Drive type Four-wheel drive

Drivetrain

* Axle ratio 3.73

Exhaust
Tailpipe Stainless steel single exhaust

Fuel
Fuel type regular unleaded

10



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Fuel Tank

Capless fuel filler Easy Fuel capless fuel filler Fuel tank capacity 23.30 gal.

Drive Feature

* Limited slip differential Electro-mechanical
limited slip differential

Traction control All-speed ABS and driveline
traction control

Locking hub control Auto locking hub control Transfer case Electronic transfer case shift

Fuel Economy and Emissions

Emissions
Emissions LEV3-ULEV50 emissions Emissions tiers Tier 3 Bin 50 emissions

Suspension and Handling

Suspension
Suspension Standard ride suspension Front shock absorbers Gas-pressurized front

shock absorbers
Rear shock absorbers Gas-pressurized rear
shock absorbers

Driveability

Brakes
Brake type 4-wheel disc brakes Ventilated brakes Front and rear ventilated disc

brakes
ABS brakes Four channel ABS brakes Electronic parking brakeElectronic parking brake
ABS brakes 4-wheel antilock (ABS) brakes Post collision braking system Ford Co-Pilot360 -

Post Collision Braking automatic post-
collision braking system

Brake Assistance
Hill start assist Hill start assist Hill control Hill descent control
Brake assist system Brake assist system

Front Suspension
Anti-roll bar front Front anti-roll bar Suspension ride type front Independent front

suspension
Suspension type front Double wishbone front
suspension

Front Spring
Regular front springs Regular front springs Springs front Front coil springs

Rear Spring
Springs rear Rear coil springs Rear springs Regular grade rear springs

11



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Rear Suspension

Anti-roll bar rear Rear anti-roll bar Suspension type rear Multi-link rear suspension
Suspension ride type rear Independent rear
suspension

Steering
Steering Electric power-assist steering system Steering type Rack-pinion steering
Speed sensitive steering Speed sensitive power
steering

Driver selectable steering effort Driver selectable
steering effort

Steering type number of wheels 2-wheel steering
system

Exterior

Front Wheels
Front wheels diameter 18" Front wheels width 8.5"

Rear Wheels
Rear wheels diameter 18" Rear wheels width 8.5"

Front And Rear Wheels
Appearance machined w/painted accents Material aluminum

Front Tires
Aspect 65 Diameter 18"

* Sidewalls BSW * Speed H

* Tread AS Type P

Width 275mm

Rear Tires
Aspect 65 Diameter 18"

* Sidewalls BSW * Speed H

* Tread AS Type P

Width 275mm

Body Exterior

Trailering

* Towing capability Heavy-duty towing
capability

Towing class Class IV tow rating

Towing hitch Trailer hitch Towing wiring harness Trailer wiring harness
* Towing brake controller Trailer brake
controller

Towing trailer sway Trailer sway control

* Towing backup assist Pro Trailer Backup
Assist trailer backup assist

12



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Exterior Features

Number of doors 4 doors Running boards Running boards
* Skid plate 3 underbody skid plates

Body
Body panels Galvanized steel and aluminum
body panels with side impact beams

Spare Tire
Spare tire Full-size spare tire with steel wheel Spare tire location Crank-down spare tire

Aerodynamics
Spoiler Rear lip spoiler

Wheels
Dual rear wheels Dual rear wheels

Convenience

Door Locks
Door locks Power door locks with 2 stage
unlocking

Keyfob door locks Keyfob activated door locks

All-in-one keyAll-in-one remote fob and ignition
key

Auto door locks Auto-locking doors

Tailgate control Power tailgate/rear door lock

Cruise Control
Cruise control Cruise control with steering
wheel mounted controls

Key Fob Controls
Fob remote engine controls Smart device engine
start control

Rear View Mirror
Day/Night rearview mirror Day/Night rearview
mirror

Exterior Mirrors
Door mirrors Power door mirrors Folding door mirrors Manual folding door mirrors
Heated door mirrors Heated driver and
passenger side door mirrors

Front Side Windows
First-row windows Power first-row windows

Overhead Console

13



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Overhead console Mini overhead console Overhead console storage Overhead console

storage

Driver Visor
Visor driver mirror Driver visor mirror Visor illuminated driver mirror Illuminated driver

visor mirror
Visor driver expandable coverage Driver visor with
expandable coverage

Passenger Visor
Visor passenger mirror Passenger visor mirror Visor illuminated passenger mirror Illuminated

passenger visor mirror
Visor passenger expandable coverage Passenger
visor with expandable coverage

Power Outlets
12V power outlets 4 12V power outlets

Cargo Features
Cargo light Cargo area light Concealed cargo storage Cargo area concealed

storage

Cargo Trim
Cargo floor type Carpet cargo area floor Trunk lid trim Plastic trunk lid trim

Remote Releases
Rear window cargo access Rear window cargo
access keyfob release

Rear Windshield
Rear window defroster Rear window defroster Rear windshield Flip-up rear windshield
Rear windshield wipers Fixed interval rear
windshield wipers

Storage
Door bins front Driver and passenger door bins Door bins rear Rear door bins
Number of beverage holders15 beverage holders Beverage holders Front beverage holders
Beverage holders rear Rear beverage holders Glove box Locking glove box
Dashboard storage Dashboard storage

Windows Feature
One-touch up window Driver and passenger
one-touch up windows

One-touch down window Driver and passenger
one-touch down windows

Windows Rear Side
Second-row windows Power second-row
windows

Third-row windows Fixed third-row windows

14



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Miscellaneous

Trip computer Trip computer PRND in IP PRND in IP
Accessory power Retained accessory power Over the air updates Over the air updates

Comfort

Climate Control
Climate control Automatic climate control Rear headliner/pillar ducts Rear headliner/pillar

climate control ducts
Dual-zone front climate control Dual-zone front
climate control

Cabin air filter Cabin air filter

Rear climate controlRear climate control system
with separate controls

Rear under seat ducts Rear under seat climate
control ducts

Auxiliary rear heater Auxiliary rear heater

Headliner
Headliner material Cloth headliner material Headliner coverage Full headliner coverage

Door Trim
Door trim insert Vinyl door trim insert

Floor Trim

* Floor covering Full vinyl floor covering Floor coverage Full floor coverage

Second-Row Seat Trim
Rear seat upholstery Cloth rear seat upholstery Rear seatback upholstery Carpet rear seatback

upholstery

Steering Wheel
Steering wheel material Leather steering wheel Steering wheel tilt Manual tilting steering wheel

Seats and Trim

Seat Capacity
Seating capacity 5

Front Seats
Driver seat direction Driver seat with 8-way
directional controls

Height adjustable driver seat Power height
adjustable driver seat

Driver seat fore/aft control Power driver seat
fore/aft control

Driver seat cushion tiltPower driver seat cushion
tilt

Passenger seat direction Front passenger seat
with 4-way directional controls

Split front seats Bucket front seats

Reclining passenger seat Manual reclining
passenger seat

Passenger seat fore/aft control Manual passenger
seat fore/aft control

15



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Front head restraints Height adjustable front
seat head restraints

Front head restraint control Manual front seat
head restraint control

Reclining driver seatManual reclining driver seat

Rear Seats
Bench seats Split-bench rear seat Rear seats fixed or removable Fixed rear seats
Folding second-row seats 40-20-40 folding rear
seats

Reclining second-row rear seats Manual reclining
rear seats

Rear seat direction Front facing rear seat Rear seat folding position Fold forward rear
seatback

Fore and aft seat Rear seats with manual fore
and aft

Rear head restraints Foldable rear seat head
restraints

Number of rear head restraints 3 rear seat head
restraints

Lumbar Seats
Driver lumbar Driver seat with 2-way power
lumbar

Front Seat Trim
Front seat upholstery Cloth front seat upholstery Front seatback upholstery Cloth front seatback

upholstery

Interior Accents
Interior accents Metal-look interior accents

Gearshifter Material
Gearshifter material Metal-look gear shifter
material

Console Trim
Console insert material Metal-look console insert

Entertainment Features

LCD Displays
Primary monitor touchscreen Primary monitor
touchscreen

Number of first-row LCD displays2 total number of
1st row displays

LCD primary display size 8 inch primary LCD
display

Radio Features
Aux input jack Auxiliary input jack External memory SYNC 4 external memory

control
Seek scan Seek scan RDS Radio data system (RDS)

Speakers

16



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Speakers Standard grade speakers Speakers number 6

Audio Features
Steering mounted audio control Steering wheel
mounted audio controls

Speed sensitive volume Speed sensitive volume

Voice activated audio SYNC 4 with Enhanced
Voice Recognition voice activated audio
controls

Wireless streaming Bluetooth wireless audio
streaming

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation

Instrumentation
Trip odometer Trip odometer Instrumentation display Digital/analog

instrumentation display

Instrumentation Displays
Temperature display Exterior temperature
display

Systems monitor Vehicle systems monitor

Clock In-radio display clock Compass Compass

Instrumentation Gauges
Tachometer Tachometer Oil pressure gauge Oil pressure gauge
Voltmeter Voltmeter Engine/electric motor temperature

gauge Engine/electric motor temperature
gauge

Gauge cluster display size (inches) 8.00

Instrumentation Warnings
Engine temperature warning Engine temperature
warning

Oil pressure warning Oil pressure warning

Low fuel warning Low fuel warning Low washer fluid warning Low washer fluid
warning

Low brake fluid warning Low brake fluid warning Battery charge warning Battery charge warning
Headlights on reminder Headlights on reminder Key in vehicle warning Key in vehicle warning
Door ajar warning Door ajar warning Trunk warning Rear cargo ajar warning
Low tire pressure warning Tire specific low air
pressure warning

Rear seat check warning Rear seat check
warning

Glass
Tinted windows Deep tinted windows

Headlights
Headlights LED low and high beam headlights Headlight type Aero-composite headlights
Auto headlights Auto on/off headlight control Multiple headlights Multiple enclosed headlights
Delay off headlights Delay-off headlights Auto high-beam headlights Ford Co-Pilot360 -

Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

17



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
DRL preference setting DRL preference setting

Front Windshield
Wipers Variable intermittent front windshield
wipers

Speed sensitive wipers Speed sensitive wipers

Interior Lighting
Illuminated entry Illuminated entry Variable panel light Variable instrument panel

light
Front reading lights Front reading lights Rear reading lights Rear reading lights

Lights
Running lights Daytime running lights Interior courtesy lights Fade interior courtesy

lights
High mount stop light High mounted center stop
light

Perimeter approach lighting Remote activated
perimeter approach lighting

Technology and Telematics

Navigation
Integrated navigation SYNC 4 Connected
Navigation integrated navigation system
with voice activation

Connectivity
Handsfree SYNC 4 handsfree wireless device
connectivity

Smart device integration SYNC 4 AppLink/Apple
CarPlay/Android Auto smart device mirroring

Real time trafficSiriusXM Traffic real-time traffic Real time weather Travel Link real-time weather
Emergency SOS SYNC 4 911 Assist
emergency SOS system via mobile device

Internet Access
Internet access FordPass Connect 4G mobile
hotspot internet access

USB Ports

* USB ports 1 USB port

Safety and Security

Airbags
Front impact airbag driver Driver front impact
airbag

Number of airbags 6 airbags

Front impact airbag passenger Passenger front
impact airbag

Front side impact airbag driver Seat mounted side
impact driver airbag

18



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
ILLINOIS GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
11/14/2022 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Expedition 4dr 4x4 XL (U1G)
Price Level: 315

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Front side impact airbag passenger Seat mounted
side impact front passenger airbag

Occupancy sensor Airbag occupancy sensor

Overhead airbags Safety Canopy System
curtain first, second and third-row overhead
airbags

Seatbelts
3-point seatbelt Rear seat center 3-point
seatbelt

Height adjustable seatbelts Front height
adjustable seatbelts

Seatbelt pretensioners Front seatbelt
pretensioners

Seatbelt pretensioners number 2  seatbelt pre-
tensioners

Security System
Immobilizer SecuriLock immobilizer Remote panic alarm Remote panic alarm
Vehicle tracker Vehicle tracker Security system Security system

Active Driving Assistance
Lane departure Lane Keeping Alert Blind spot Ford Co-Pilot360 - BLIS (Blind Spot

Information System)
Forward collision warningFord Co-Pilot360 - Pre-
Collision Assist with Pedestrian Detection

* Rear collision warning Ford Co-Pilot360 -
Reverse Brake Assist collision mitigation

Pedestrian detection Ford Co-Pilot360 - Pre-
Collision Assist with Pedestrian Detection

Driver attention monitorFord Co-Pilot360 - Driver
Alert

Distance alert Following distance alert Restricted driving mode MyKey restricted driving
mode

Cameras

* Rear camera High Resolution Digital
Camera rear mounted camera

Traction Control
Electronic stability control Electronic stability
control system with anti-roll

Parking Sensors
Parking sensors Reverse Sensing System rear
parking sensors

Occupant Safety
Child door locks Manual rear child safety door
locks

19



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:    David J. Rickert 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     12-15-2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution to Fund Water Resources Strategic Plan with ARPA  
    Funds  

County Code:    N/A 

Board Meeting Date:   12-22-2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   Yes                        Appropriation Amount:    $212,673                                                        

If not, explain funding source:  American Rescue Plan Act  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300               Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:   This cost will allow Winnebago County to develop a regional  
    water management plan that will ensure all communities in  
    Winnebago County to have access to safe, clean, affordable  
    drinking water and wastewater services, as well as to set forth a  
    framework for the management of water supplies and resiliency  
    to floods, drought, and other risks. This plan will inform   
    Winnebago County for the next 20 years.  

Recommendation:     Administration Supports 
 
Contract/Agreement:    See attachment 
 
Legal Review:    N/A 
 
Baker Tilly Review:   Approved 
 
Follow-Up:      Funds are subject to compliance with ARPA requirements with any 
    agreement subject to review by the States Attorney’s office. 



County Board: 12/22/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO FUND  
WATER RESOURCES STRATEGIC PLAN  

WITH ARPA FUNDS 
 

 WHEREAS, This cost will allow Winnebago County to develop a regional water 
management plan that will ensure all communities in Winnebago County to have access to 
safe, clean, affordable drinking water and wastewater services, as well as to set forth a 
framework for the management of water supplies and resiliency to floods, drought, and 
other risks. This plan will inform Winnebago County for the next 20 years and; 

 
WHEREAS, in May 2021, Winnebago County Board received funds through the 

American Rescue Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the proposal for the aforementioned request and recommends 
awarding; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is authorized to contract with Region 1 Planning 
Council for a water resources strategic plan for Winnebago County. For a sum not to 
exceed $212,673.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               
 
 
 
 



 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

         FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
1 

Professional Services Agreement 
 
Contract #: 202108-WC-PSA01 
Project Name: Regional Water Management Plan 
 
This Professional Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into November ____, 2022, (the “Effective 
Date”) by and between Region 1 Planning Council (“RPC”) and Winnebago County (“Client”).   
 
WHEREAS, the Client wishes to obtain the professional services of RPC; and, 
 
WHEREAS, RPC has the knowledge, skill, and capability to perform such services for the Client. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, RPC agrees to provide services to the Client under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  
 
1. Services. The Client hereby retains RPC to provide professional services (“Services”) as follows: 

(a) Purpose:  RPC staff shall work with designated the Client representatives to develop a regional water 
management plan that will ensure all communities in Winnebago County to have access to safe, clean, 
affordable drinking water and wastewater services, as well as to set forth a framework for the management of 
water supplies and resiliency to floods, drought, and other climate risks associated with pollution. This plan will 
inform Winnebago County for the next 20 years. RPC will also address other factors such as water equity and its 
relevance to locations of waste, ground, and surface water in relation to point source pollution and nearby 
populations. 

(b) Scope: Creation and completion of the project shall include data collection and analysis, stakeholder engagement, 
report documentation, and development of a water map & tool. The following work products shall be produced, 
including: 

a. Phase 0. Project Management: Project management will be ongoing throughout the planning 
process and will include at minimum the following: project work plan preparation and execution of 
deliverables; project scheduling and budget tracking; and meeting facilitation.  

b. Phase 1. Water Resource Assessment: This assessment will gather community health feedback and 
historic and current data on smaller community and non-community water systems in Winnebago 
County. 

o Phase 1.1. Determinant of Health: Identify priority determinant of health by working with 
stakeholders to identify determinants of health and develop a ranking system for the 
determinants of health, in addition to different components associated with these 
determinants 

o Phase 1.2. Data Collection: Gathering existing data to establish baseline conditions and to 
identify current and historic issues with water quality and community water systems. 

o Phase 1.3. Data Analysis: involve performing a complete analysis on the data collected. The 
end result will be a baseline conditions GIS map with all data points as separate layers. This 
map will reflect risk and resilience in Winnebago County, highlighting priority communities 
(i.e., those most vulnerable), based on water quality, quantity, and social demographic 
considerations. 

o Phase 1.4. Community Water Recommendations and Decision Alternatives: This phase will 
consist of targeted community engagement to identify priority health concerns based on the 



2 
 

community specific vulnerabilities identified in the previous phases. Once priority concerns 
have been compiled, all decision alternatives under consideration by decision-makers will be 
clearly identified to address these concerns. The following community engagement will take 
place:  
 Steering Committee Meetings (3) 
 Subcommittee (Small Community Water System) Meetings (4) 
 Focus Groups (3): Members of Environmental Justice communities, interested 

community members, water reclamation districts, Illinois State Water Survey, Illinois 
Groundwater Association, other specialty groups in the region for more focused 
discussions as needed.  

 Stakeholder Interviews (Mainly Small Community Water Systems 
c. Phase 2. Health Impact Assessment: The Health Impact Assessment phase will analyze the potential 

impacts of community water recommendations formed by community outreach, stakeholder 
engagement, and data analysis in Phase 1. These recommendations will be examined through 
several lenses, including public health, equity, and economic impacts. 

o Phase 2.1. Screening: Once the proposed recommendations and decision alternatives under 
consideration by decision-makers are clearly identified in Phase 1, the potential for those 
proposals to impact health and the value the Health Impact Assessment (HIA) could provide 
- including effects on public health and potential for unequally distributed impacts - will be 
considered. 

o Phase 2.2. Scoping: Determine the scope of health determinants and health effects that will 
be included in the HIA, the populations affected, the sources of data and the methods to be 
used in Assessment. The ongoing community outreach and data efforts initiated as 
part of Phase 1 will be utilized in these determinations. 

o Phase 2.3. Assessment: Establish the baseline conditions related to health status and the 
health determinants to be included in the HIA (utilizing efforts from Phase 1 to the extent 
possible) and systematically consider the full range of potential impacts of the proposal on 
health determinants, health status, the equitable distribution of these impacts, and cost-
benefit considerations. 

o Phase 2.4: Recommendations: Provide recommendations, as needed, on feasible and 
effective actions to promote the potential positive health impacts and mitigate the potential 
negative health impacts of the proposed decision, identifying, where appropriate, 
alternatives or modifications to the proposal. This phase will also include funding source 
identification and describe both current and future system maintenance needs as it relates 
to public health. 

o Phase 2.5: Reporting: Produce a publicly accessible report that includes, at minimum, 
documentation of the HIA’s purpose, findings, recommendations, and documentation of the 
processes and methods involved. The report will be shared with decision-makers and other 
stakeholders. 

o Phase 2.6: Evaluation of the Process: Determine the effectiveness of how the HIA was 
designed and undertaken, including preparation, research, reporting, and follow-up. Ideally, 
partners will provide feedback throughout the duration of the HIA process. 

d. Phase 3. Water Action Plan: The Water Action Plan will be the road map to implementing 
recommendations identified from the HIA process. This plan will outline goals, responsible parties, 
timelines, prioritized steps, and implementation monitoring. Phase 3 will result in a Water Action 
Plan detailing key implementation strategies and actions as a result from the decision 
points/projects identified in Phase 1 and assessed in Phase 2.  The plan will tentatively cover the 
below (to be determined by information gathered during community outreach): 

o Summarize Phase 1 and 2. 
o Form an implementation plan structure. 
o Outline goals in connection to implementation steps. 



3 
 

o Establish monitoring and outcome evaluation.  
o Propose indicators, actions, and responsible parties, where indicated, for a plan to monitor 

the implementation of recommendations, as well as health effects and outcomes of the 
proposal. 

o Gather feedback from the public and steering committee via community engagement 
efforts outlined in Phase 1.5. 

During Phase 3, the following community engagement will take place:  
o Steering Committee Meetings (1) 
o Subcommittee (Small Community Water System) Meetings (1) 
o Community Open Houses/Public Meetings (2) 
o Public Presentations (5) 

e. Phase 4. Water Map & Tool: The Water Map and Tool will be further refined in Phases 1-3 based 
upon Winnebago County and the stakeholders’ most pressing needs. The public facing map may 
highlight information such as key findings and objectives of the HIA & Action Plan, while also 
displaying a general overview of the project. The development process of the water map and tool 
will involve the following: 

o Description and outline of what needs the tool can address; 
o Coordination with WinGIS to formulate and update tool with available data; and 
o Creation of online water management map and tool. 

 
(c) Completion Date: Services to be performed under this Agreement shall be completed no later than July 30, 2023 

or sooner pending the level of participation by primary sources. 
(d)  

Services Start Date End Date Duration 
Phase 0: Project Management 05/15/2022 9/30/2023 Ongoing 
Phase 1: Community Water Resource Assessment 6/01/2022 9/15/2022 4 Months 
Phase 2: Health Impact Assessment 9/15/2022 3/15/2023 6 Months 
Phase 3: Water Action Plan 3/15/2023 6/15/2023 3 Months 
Phase 4: Water Map & Tool 5/15/2023 7/15/2023 2 Months 
Final Plan Approved and Adopted 5/15/2022 7/15/2023 15 Months 

 
Materials required by RPC from the Client to complete the proposal will be requested in writing (via email). 
Information required to meet the standards of a third-party, independent analysis will be provided by the Client 
to the RPC on a timely basis. Without timely reply, RPC cannot guarantee timely completion of the analytical 
report and accompanying recommendations.    
 
RPC will make a written request (via email) to the Client to provide RPC with data, documents or other materials 
needed to complete the scope of work. The Client shall provide materials to RPC within 48 hours of RPC’s 
written request. If the Client requires additional time to gather requested materials, Client shall notify RPC 
within 24 hours to negotiate a mutually agreed upon timeframe for the delivery of materials.  
 

(e) Estimated Cost per Hour and Hours: In exchange for the Services provided by RPC to the Client under the terms 
of this Agreement, the Client shall pay RPC for work performed at the following rates:  

Services Est. Hours Rate 
Previous Hours & Cost Accrued 780 $66,300.00 
Phase 0: Project Management 505 $35,998.00 
Phase 1: Community Water Resource Assessment 574 $37,075.00 
Phase 2: Health Impact Assessment 531 $33,405.00 
Phase 3: Water Action Plan 552 $33,915.00 
Phase 4: Water Map & Tool 91 $5,980.00 



4 
 

Total Project Cost: 3,033 $212,673.00 
 

If for any reason more time is needed to prepare and submit the proposal, RPC shall inform the Client of the 
reason for the deviation, the estimated amount of additional time needed, and the associated cost difference as 
soon as the need for the change is known. The Client will be afforded the opportunity to amend this agreement 
to accommodate the change or to cancel the project with no further obligation to RPC for any additional services 
rendered.  
 
The Client agrees that the number of hours needed to complete the project will depend on the quantity, quality, 
and relevance of materials furnished by the Client to RPC staff. Accordingly, the more information provided to 
RPC by the Client, the less time will be needed to complete the project. The aforementioned estimate of hours is 
provided for planning purposes only and the actual amount billed to the Client will be based on the amount of 
time actually spent on the project. The Client will receive a detailed accounting of time, billed in quarter-hour 
increments (15 minutes), with all invoices. 

 
(f) Assignment of Personnel: RPC may, at its sole discretion, assign personnel to perform the Services under this 

Agreement.  
 

(g) Maximum Price: In no event shall the total amount charged for work performed under this Agreement exceed 
$212,673.00 unless agreed to in writing by the parties. 

 
2. Term. This Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and will remain in full force and effect until the Completion 

Date unless the Agreement term is extended by mutual written agreement of the parties or is terminated in 
accordance with Section 6.  
  

3. Payment. RPC shall issue monthly invoices to Client for work performed under this Agreement. Fees shall be paid by 
Client within 30 days (60 days, if subject to 30 ILCS 540/State Prompt Payment Act) of invoice receipt. Services may be 
suspended pending receipt of account balance paid in full. 
 

4. Confidentiality. Unless otherwise required by law, RPC will exercise reasonable effort to maintain in confidence 
information disclosed or submitted to RPC by the Client as confidential information. Confidential information does 
not include information that: 
(a) is generally available in the public domain or becomes available to the public through no act of RPC; or 
(b) is independently known by RPC prior to receipt; or 
(c) made available to RPC as a matter of lawful right by a third party.  
 
Unless otherwise required by law, all reports, documents, and other deliverables created by RPC pursuant to the terms 
of this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and will not be made available to any unintended third party without 
the prior written approval of the Client.  
 

5. Intellectual Property. No reports or other documents produced in whole or in part pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement shall be the subject of an application for copyright by either party. 
 

6. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement for material breach upon thirty (30) days written notice, 
during which time the party alleged to have breached may cure. Additionally, either party may terminate this 
Agreement for convenience upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other party. Upon termination, the Client shall 
promptly pay RPC for all Services rendered up to and including the effective date of termination. All deliverables not 
paid for within 60 days of termination shall become the property of RPC.  
 

7. Relationship of the Parties. The parties acknowledge and agree that the Services performed by RPC, its employees, 
agents, and sub-contractors shall be that of an independent contractor. Neither party is an agent or representative of 



5 
 

the other party and has no authority to bind or commit the other party to any agreements or other obligations except 
those that are within the scope of Services to be provided under this Agreement. Each party shall have the right to 
publish, distribute, advertise, or otherwise disclose the relationship and the general services created and performed 
under this Agreement. 
 

8. Indemnification. The Client agrees to indemnify and hold RPC and its employees harmless from any loss, claim, 
damage, or liability arising out of or in connection with the action or inaction of the Client under this Agreement, 
including but not limited to provision of data and information used for research and analysis purposes. The Client shall 
indemnify and hold RPC and its employees harmless from any loss, claim, damage, or liability arising out of or in 
connection with the Client’s use of deliverables provided under this Agreement. If the Client fails to provide 
information that is needed for the completion of the project, or such information is incorrect, RPC is not liable unless 
RPC was aware of the inaccuracy or was unaware of the inaccuracy as a result of gross negligence. The Client shall 
indemnify and hold RPC and its employees harmless from any loss, claim, damage, or liability arising out of or in 
connection with this failure to provide information if it results in an inability to submit the project by the submission 
deadline. 
 
In the event that the Client elects to cancel the Agreement for any reason other than a material breach, RPC is hereby 
indemnified from any losses, potential or actual, incurred by the Client as a result of the project not being completed. 
RPC is further indemnified from any losses, potential or actual, incurred by the Client as a result of research and 
analytical report materials that are incomplete or of poor quality due to termination of the Agreement. 

 
9. Representations and Warranties. RPC represents and warrants that: 

(a) it will perform the Services with reasonable care and skill; and 
(b) the Services and related materials provided under this Agreement will not infringe or violate any intellectual 

property rights or other right of any third party.  
 
10. Limitation of Liability. Either party’s liability in contract, tort, or otherwise (including negligence) arising directly out 

of or in connection with this Agreement or the performance or observance of its obligations under this Agreement 
and every applicable part of it shall be limited in aggregate to the applicable insurance limits.  

 
11. Severability. The invalidity or illegality of one or more provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the enforceability 

of the remaining provisions.  
 
12. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.  
 
13. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 

concerning the subject matter hereof. No amendments or changes to this Agreement shall be effective unless made 
in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each party.  

 
14. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (including facsimile signatures), each of which shall 

be deemed to be an original and both of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by proper persons duly authorized.  
 
Authorized Signors & Designated Contacts 
To ensure prompt and accurate delivery of applicable communications, please provide the contact information for each 
of the relevant topics below.  
 
Party Region 1 Planning Council  Party Winnebago County 

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/disclosure-of-relationship


6 
 

Signature   Signature  

Date Signed  Date Signed  
Signor Name Michael Dunn Jr. Signor Name Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Signor Title Executive Director Signor Title Winnebago County Chairman 
Agreement Michael Dunn Jr. 

mdunn@r1planning.org 
(815) 319-4180 

Agreement  

Services Sydney Turner 
sturner@r1planning.org 
(815) 319-4185 

Services  

Billing Accounting 
accounting@r1planning.org 
(815) 319-4180 

Billing  

Mail 127 N Wyman St, Ste 100 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Mail  

 
 

mailto:mdunn@r1planning.org
mailto:mdunn@r1planning.org
mailto:accounting@r1planning.org
mailto:accounting@r1planning.org


 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:    David J. Rickert 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     12-15-2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution to Fund Baker Tilly Professional Services for River Bluff  
    Nursing Home 

County Code:    N/A 

Board Meeting Date:   12-22-2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?              Yes                                   Appropriation Amount:     $45,000                                                    

If not, explain funding source:  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         70500/43190                  Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:   The engagement will provide information necessary to assist the  
    planned for oversight board that Winnebago County plans to  
    implement for the River Bluff Nursing Home. The engagement will 
    consist of accounts receivable and a clinical operational review.  
    The evaluation and assessment of River Bluff Nursing Home’s  
    operations will focus on identifying opportunities and areas for  
    improvement. We will obtain a thorough understanding of the  
    current accounts receivable and clinical operations, and provide  
    recommendations aimed at strengthening the existing processes  
    and improving operations. 

 
Recommendation:     Administration Supports 
 
Contract/Agreement:    See attachment engagement letter 
 
Legal Review:    Currently under review 
 
Follow-Up:      A report with recommendations concerning the operations of the  
    business office of River Bluff Nursing Home will be a deliverable  
    from this service.  



County Board: 12/22/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO FUND BAKER TILLY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  
FOR  

RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME 
 

 WHEREAS, The engagement will provide information necessary to assist the planned for 
oversight board that Winnebago County plans to implement for the River Bluff Nursing Home. 
and; 

 
WHEREAS, The engagement will consist of accounts receivable and a clinical 

operational review. The evaluation and assessment of River Bluff Nursing Home’s operations 
will focus on identifying opportunities and areas for improvement. We will obtain a thorough 
understanding of the current accounts receivable and clinical operations, and provide 
recommendations aimed at strengthening the existing processes and improving operations. 
and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, has reviewed the proposal for the aforementioned request and recommends 
awarding; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the County Administrator is authorized to contract with Baker Tilly for 
professional services not to exceed $45,000.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               
 
 

 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                              JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN  

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                               JEAN CROSBY 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                             MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2022. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

 

December 7, 2022 
 
 
Patrick J. Thompson 
County Administrator 
Winnebago County 
(River Bluff Nursing Home) 
404 Elm Street, Room 533 
Rockford, IL  61101 
 
Re: Accounts Receivable and Clinical Operational Review 
 
Dear Patrick: 
 
Baker Tilly US, LLP (Baker Tilly) is pleased to present this Engagement Letter to provide accounts receivable 
and clinical advisory services to Winnebago County (River Bluff Nursing Home). 
 
Engagement Background 
 
Our engagement will consist of a accounts receivable and clinical operational review of River Bluff Nursing 
Home. Our evaluation and assessment of River Bluff Nursing Home’s operations will focus on identifying 
opportunities and areas for improvement. We will obtain a thorough understanding of the current accounts 
receivable and clinical operations, and provide recommendations aimed at strengthening the existing processes 
and improving operations. 
 
We understand the engagement objective is for River Bluff Nursing Home’s management team to receive the 
results of an evaluation and assessment of the current accounts receivable and clinical operations, and where 
opportunities may exist. The River Bluff Nursing Home management intends to use these results to ensure that 
sound practices are in place. 
 
Engagement Scope and Approach  
 
Management will evaluate the accounts receivable and clinical operations processes observations and 
recommendations to ensure that goals and objectives are met. Based on preliminary conversations with 
Management, our process for the accounts receivable and clinical operational review is currently expected to 
include the following: 
 
The following is an outline of the procedures to be performed: 
 

1. Schedule a planning/introductory meeting with management to discuss formally and in 
detail the current operating procedures in place. 

 
2. Assign experienced team members to the engagement to perform an assessment of 

River Bluff Nursing Home accounts receivable and clinical operations. 
 

3. We will conduct interviews with certain individuals within the accounts receivable and Minimum 
Data Set (MDS) departments. 

 
4. We will review the River Bluff Nursing Home’s revenue cycle for reimbursement opportunities. 

Areas impacted include: 
 

a. Accounts Receivable 
b. Billing/Collection Practices 
c. Census and Payor Mix Analysis 
d. Medicare Part A FFS Reimbursable Bad Debts  



 

 

Patrick J. Thompson 
County Administrator 
Winnebago County 
(River Bluff Nursing Home) 
 
December 7, 2022 
Page 2 
 

 
5. We will review assessment practices and trending of clinical indicators that impact quality metrics 

and reimbursement within River Bluff Nursing Home. Areas impacted include: 
 

a. Patient-Driven Payment Model 
b. PHE Waiver Utilization Analysis 
c. Medicare Advantage RUG-based Payments 
d. Quality Measures 
 

Engagement Team  
 
We have specifically assembled the members of your engagement team to ensure your objectives are met. 
Your engagement team has extensive experience providing consulting services to senior living providers.  
 
Edward A. Klik, Jr, Principal 
As engagement principal, Ed will be responsible for the project and the overall coordination of our senior living 
consulting services. 
 
Richard L. Snyder, Billing and Reimbursement Consultant 
Rick will be responsible for overall management of the project as well as the accounts receivable evaluation 
assessment. 
 
Kristopher S. Pattison, Senior Manager - Clinical Consultant 
Kris will be responsible for the overall management of the clinical operations review. 
 
Management Responsibilities 
 
Our services are limited to those outlined above which will be performed in accordance with applicable 
professional standards. Baker Tilly will not assume Management responsibilities on behalf of Winnebago 
County (River Bluff Nursing Home). In addition, Baker Tilly, in its sole professional judgment, reserves the right 
to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could be construed as making significant judgments and 
decisions that are the proper responsibility of Management.  
 
In connection with Baker Tilly’s provision of services under this agreement, Management will: 
 

• Designate a location for Baker Tilly to use when conducting on-site work; 
• Coordinate meetings and our work efforts and gather accurate, complete, and timely data requested for 

the engagement; 
• Designate an employee with suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience, preferably within senior 

management, to oversee the services we perform; 
• Establish and monitor the performance of the engagement to ensure that it meets Management's 

objectives; 
• Make all Management decisions and perform all Management functions;  
• Evaluate the adequacy and results of our services; and 
• Accept responsibility for our services. 

 
Timing and Professional Fees 
 
We are prepared to commence this engagement, as previously outlined, upon receipt of a signed engagement 
letter signifying your acceptance of the terms described herein. We would anticipate this engagement 
commencing between January 2023 - March 2023, based on current scheduling and availability.  Our fees will 
be based on our hourly professional rates. If we finish the accounts receivable and clinical operational review in 
less time than quoted below, we will bill less than the range included in this engagement letter. Based upon the 
scope of work outlined herein, we have estimated our professional fees as follows: 



 

 

Patrick J. Thompson 
County Administrator 
Winnebago County 
(River Bluff Nursing Home) 
 
December 7, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

Estimated 100 - 150 hours      Estimated Fee: $25,000 - $40,000 
Optional – Formal Report     Estimated Fee: $5,000 

 
In addition to the professional fees, we will bill for travel time, at a rate of 50 percent of our hourly professional 
rates. Further, out-of-pocket expenses and administrative charges will also be billed directly to the Winnebago 
County (River Bluff Nursing Home).  
 
We will immediately notify you if we believe additional professional time, beyond our estimated budget and 
related fees, will be required due to increased scope of work. Should we perform work beyond the scope of the 
services outlined above, our hourly rates for such additional work will range from $200 to $500 per hour, 
depending on the level of professional staff assigned. We will not render any additional billings to the 
Winnebago County (River Bluff Nursing Home) above and beyond the fees quoted above without 
Management’s approval. 
 
An invoice for $25,000 will be rendered upon execution of this Engagement Letter. All remaining invoices for 
our services will be rendered as work progresses. 
 
Any additional fees are payable upon presentation. A charge of 1.5% per month shall be imposed on accounts 
not paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of our statement for services provided. In accordance with our firm 
policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes thirty (30) days or more overdue and will not be 
resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement 
will be deemed to have been completed upon written notice of termination, even if we have not completed our 
report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all expenditures 
through the date of termination. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you.  
 
If there are any questions regarding the Engagement Letter, please contact Edward A. Klik, Jr., Principal on this 
engagement. Ed is available at 724-658-1565 and/or ed.klik@bakertilly.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
BAKER TILLY US, LLP 
 
 
The services and terms as set forth in this Engagement Letter are agreed to by: 
 
 
 
 

Officer signature 
 
 

Title 
 
 

Date



Baker Tilly US, LLP  
Standard Business Terms 

Consulting Terms Page 1 of 4 Rev. July 2022 

These Standard Business Terms (“Terms”) govern the services provided by Baker Tilly US, LLP (Baker Tilly, we, us or our) set forth in the Statement of 
Work to which these Terms are attached (the “Services”). These Terms and any applicable online terms and conditions or terms of use (“Online Terms”)  
related to online products or services made available to Company by Baker Tilly (“Online Offering”) , together with the Statement of Work to which they are 
attached, constitute the entire understanding and agreement between the client identified on such Statement of Work (the “Client”) and Baker Tilly with 
respect to the Services described in the Statement of Work (collectively, the Statement of Work and these Terms are referred to as the “Agreement”) and 
supersede and incorporate all prior or contemporaneous representations, understandings or agreements, and may not be modified or amended except by an 
agreement in writing signed between the parties hereto. For clarity and avoidance of doubt, the terms of this Engagement Letter govern Baker Tilly’s 
provision of the services described herein, and the Online Terms govern Company’s use of the Online Offering. This Agreement's provisions shall not be 
deemed modified or amended by the conduct of the parties. If there is a conflict between these Terms and the terms of any Statement of Work, these Terms 
shall govern. 

Section 1. Confidentiality 
With respect to this Agreement and any information supplied in 
connection with this Agreement and designated by the disclosing party 
(the “Disclosing Party”) as “Confidential Information” either by marking it 
as “confidential” prior to disclosure to the receiving party (the “Recipient”) 
or, if such information is disclosed orally or by inspection, then by 
indicating to the Recipient that the information is confidential at the time 
of disclosure and confirming in writing to the Recipient, the confidential 
nature of the information within ten (10) business days of such 
disclosure, the Recipient agrees to: (i) protect the Confidential 
Information in the same manner in which it protects its confidential 
information of like importance, but in no case using less than reasonable 
care; (ii) use the Confidential Information only to perform its obligations 
under this Agreement; and (iii) reproduce Confidential Information only 
as required to perform its obligations under this Agreement. This section 
shall not apply to information which is (A) publicly known, (B) already 
known to the recipient, (C) disclosed by Recipient to a third party without 
restriction, (D) independently developed, or € disclosed pursuant to legal 
requirement or order, or as is required by regulations or professional 
standards governing the Services performed. Subject to the foregoing, 
Baker Tilly may disclose Client’s Confidential Information to its 
subcontractors and subsidiaries. 

Section 2. Deliverables 
(a) Notwithstanding the above and solely with respsect to ownership of
deliverables in this Section, unless specified otherwise on the applicable
Statement of Work, materials specifically prepared by Baker Tilly for 
Client as a deliverable under a Statement of Work (each a “Deliverable”) 
may, when fully paid for by Client, be used, copied, distributed internally,
and modified by Client but solely for its internal business purposes.
Client shall not, without Baker Tilly’s prior written consent, disclose to a
third party, publicly quote or make reference to the Deliverables. Baker 
Tilly shall retain all right, title and interest in and to: (i) the Deliverables,
including but not limited to, all patent, copyright, trademark and other
intellectual property rights therein; and (ii) all methodologies, processes,
techniques, ideas, concepts, trade secrets and know-how embodied in
the Deliverables or that Baker Tilly may develop or supply in connection
with this Agreement (the “Baker Tilly Knowledge”). Subject to the 
confidentiality restrictions contained in Section 1, Baker Tilly may use the
Deliverables and the Baker Tilly Knowledge for any purpose.
(b) The documentation for this engagement, including the workpapers, is 
not part of the Deliverables, is the property of Baker Tilly and constitutes 
confidential information. We may have a responsibility to retain the
documentation for a period of time sufficient to satisfy any applicable
legal or regulatory requirements for records retention. Baker Tilly does 
not retain any original client records and we will return such records to
you at the completion of the Services rendered under this engagement.
When such records are returned to you, it is the Company’s
responsibility to retain and protect its accounting and other business 
records for future use, including potential review by any government or
other regulatory agencies. By your signature below, you acknowledge
and agree that, upon the expiration of the documentation retention
period, Baker Tilly shall be free to destroy our workpapers related to th is 
engagement. If we are required by law, regulation or professional 
standards to make certain documentation available to Regulators, Client
hereby authorizes us to do so.

Section 3. Acceptance 
Client shall accept Deliverables which (i) substantially conform to the 
specifications in the Statement of Work or (ii) where applicable, 
successfully complete the mutually agreed to acceptance test plan 
described in the Statement of Work. Client will promptly give Baker Tilly 
written notification of any nonconformance of the Deliverables with such 
requirements (Nonconformance) within thirty (30) days following delivery 
of such Deliverables, and Baker Tilly shall have a reasonable period of 
time, based on the severity and complexity of the Nonconformance, to 

correct the Nonconformance so that the Deliverables substantially 
conform to the specifications. If Client uses the Deliverable before 
acceptance, fails to promptly notify Baker Tilly of any Nonconformance 
within such 30-day period, or delays the beginning of acceptance testing 
more than five (5) business days past the agreed upon date for the start 
of such acceptance testing as specified or otherwise determined under 
the Statement of Work, then the Deliverable shall be deemed irrevocably 
accepted by the Client. 

Section 4. Standards of Performance 
Baker Tilly shall perform its Services in conformity with the terms 
expressly set forth in this Agreement. Accordingly, our Services shall be 
evaluated on our substantial conformance with such terms and 
standards. Any claim of nonconformance (and applicability of such 
standards) must be clearly and convincingly shown. Client acknowledges 
that the Services will involve the participation and cooperation of 
management and others of Client. Unless required by professional 
standards or Client and Baker Tilly otherwise agree in writing, Baker Tilly 
shall have no responsibility to update any of its work after its completion.  

Section 5. Warranty 
(a) Each party represents and warrants to the other that it has full power
and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and any 
Statement of Work entered into pursuant hereto and the person signing
this Agreement or such Statement of Work on behalf of each party
hereto has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this 
Agreement.
(b) Client warrants that it has the legal right and authority, and will
continue to have the legal right and authority during the term of this 
Agreement, to operate, configure, provide, place, install, upgrade, add,
maintain and repair (and authorize Baker Tilly to do any of the foregoing
to the extent the same are included in the Services) the hardware,
software and data that comprises any of Client’s information technology
system upon which or related to which Baker Tilly provides Services 
under this Agreement.
(c) Baker Tilly warrants that any Services that it provides to Client under
this Agreement and any Statement of Work will be performed in
accordance with generally accepted industry standards of care and
competence. Client’s sole and exclusive remedy for a breach of Baker 
Tilly’s warranty will be for Baker Tilly, in its sole discretion, to either: (i) 
use its reasonable commercial efforts to re-perform or correct the
Services, or (ii) refund the fee Client paid for the Services that are in
breach of Baker Tilly’s warranty. Client must make a claim for breach of
warranty in writing within thirty (30) days of the date that the Services
that do not comply with Baker Tilly’s warranty are performed. This
warranty is voided in the event that Client makes alterations to the
Services provided by Baker Tilly or to the environment in which the
Services are used (including the physical, network and systems
environments) that are not authorized in writing by Baker Tilly. If Client
does not notify Baker Tilly of a breach of Baker Tilly’s warranty during
that 30-day period, Client will be deemed to have irrevocably accepted
the Services.
(d) Baker Tilly does not warrant any third-party product (each, a
Product). All Products are provided to Client by Baker Tilly “AS IS.”
Baker Tilly will, to the extent it is allowed to by its vendors, pass through
any warranties and indemnifications provided by the manufacturer of the
Product. Client, recognizing that Baker Tilly is not the manufacturer of
any Product, expressly waives any claim that Client may have against
Baker Tilly based upon any product liability or infringement or alleged
infringement of any patent, copyright, trade secret or other intellectual 
property right (each a Claim) with respect to any Product and also
waives any right to indemnification from Baker Tilly against any such
Claim made against Client by another. Client acknowledges that no
employee of Baker Tilly or any other party is authorized to make any 
representation or warranty on behalf of Baker Tilly that is not in this 
Agreement.



 

 

Baker Tilly US, LLP  
Standard Business Terms (cont.) 

 

Consulting Terms Page 2 of 4 Rev. July 2022 

(e) This section 5 is Baker Tilly’s only warranty concerning the Services 
and any deliverable, and is made expressly in lieu of all other warranties 
and representations, express or implied, including any implied warranties 
of merchantability, ACCURACY, TITLE, noninfringement or fitness for a 
particular purpose, or otherwise. 

Section 6. Limitation on Damages and Indemnification 
(a) The liability (including attorney’s fees and all other costs) of Baker 
Tilly and its present or former partners, principals, agents or employees 
related to any claim for damages relating to the Services performed 
under this Agreement shall not exceed the fees paid to Baker Tilly for the 
portion of the work to which the claim relates, except to the extent finally 
determined to have resulted from the willful misconduct or fraudulent 
behavior of Baker Tilly relating to such Services. This limitation of liability 
is intended to apply to the full extent allowed by law, regardless of the 
grounds or nature of any claim asserted, including the negligence of 
either party. Additionally, in no event shall either party be liable fo r any 
lost profits, lost business opportunity, lost data, consequential, special, 
incidental, exemplary or punitive damages, delays, interruptions or 
viruses arising out of or related to this Agreement even if the other party 
has been advised of the possibility of such damages. 
(b) As Baker Tilly is performing the Services solely for the benefit of 
Client, Client will indemnify Baker Tilly, its subsidiaries and their present 
or former partners, principals, employees, officers and agents against all 
costs, fees, expenses, damages and liabilities (including attorneys’ fees 
and all defense costs) associated with any third-party claim, relating to or 
arising as a result of the Services, Client’s use of the Deliverables, or this 
Agreement.  
(c) In the event Baker Tilly is requested by the Client; or required by 
government regulation, subpoena or other legal process to produce our 
engagement working papers or its personnel as witnesses with respect 
to its Services rendered for the Client, so long as Baker Tilly is not a 
party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, Client will 
reimburse Baker Tilly for its professional time and expenses, as well as 
the fees and legal expenses, incurred in responding to such a request. 
(d) Because of the importance of the information that Client provides to 
Baker Tilly with respect to Baker Tilly’s ability to perform the Services, 
Client hereby releases Baker Tilly and its present and former partners, 
principals, agents and employees from any liability, damages, fees, 
expenses and costs, including attorney's fees, relating to the Services, 
that arise from or relate to any information, including representations by 
management, provided by Client, its personnel or agents, that is not 
complete, accurate or current, whether or not management knew or 
should have known that such information was not complete, accurate or 
current. 
(e) Each party recognizes and agrees that the warranty disclaimers and 
liability and remedy limitations in this Agreement are material bargained 
for bases of this Agreement and that they have been taken into account 
and reflected in determining the consideration to be given by each party 
under this Agreement and in the decision by each party to enter into this 
Agreement.  
(f) The terms of this Section 6 shall apply regardless of the nature of any 
claim asserted (including, but not limited to, contract, tort or any form of 
negligence, whether of Client, Baker Tilly or others), but these Terms 
shall not apply to the extent finally determined to be contrary to  the 
applicable law or regulation. These Terms shall also continue to apply 
after any termination of this Agreement.  
(g) Client accepts and acknowledges that any legal proceedings arising 
from or in conjunction with the Services provided under this Agreement 
must be commenced within twelve (12) months after the performance of 
the Services for which the action is brought, without consideration as to 
the time of discovery of any claim or any other statutes of limitations or 
repose. 

Section 7. Personnel 
During the term of this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months 
following the expiration or termination thereof, neither party will actively 
solicit the employment of the personnel of the other party involved 
directly with providing Services hereunder. Bo th parties acknowledge 
that the fee for hiring personnel from the other party, during the project 
term and within six months following completion, will be a fee equal to 
the hired person’s annual salary at the time of the violation so as to 
reimburse the party for the costs of hiring and training a replacement. 

Section 8. Data Privacy and Security 
(a) To the extent the Services require Baker Tilly receive personal data 
or personal information from Client, Baker Tilly may process any 
personal data or personal information, as those terms are defined in 
applicable privacy laws, in accordance with the requirements of the 

applicable privacy law relevant to the processing in providing Services 
hereunder. Applicable privacy laws may include any local, state, federal 
or international laws, standards, guidelines, policies or regulations 
governing the collection, use, disclosure, sharing or other processing of 
personal data or personal information with which Baker Tilly or its Clients 
must comply. Such privacy laws may include (i) the EU General Data 
Protection Regulation 2016/679 (GDPR); (ii) the California Consumer 
Privacy Act of 2018 (CCPA); and/or (iii) other laws regulating marketing 
communications, requiring security breach notification, imposing 
minimum security requirements, requiring the secure disposal of records, 
and other similar requirements applicable to the processing of personal 
data or personal information. Baker Tilly is acting as a Service 
Provider/Data Processor in relation to Client personal data and personal 
information, as those terms are defined respectively under the 
CCPA/GDPR. Client is responsible for notifying Baker Tilly of any data 
privacy laws the data provided to Baker Tilly is subject to and Client 
represents and warrants it has all necessary authority (including any 
legally required consent from data subjects) to transfer such information 
and authorize Baker Tilly to process such information in connection with 
the Services described herein. Client agrees that Baker Tilly has the right 
to generate aggregated/de-identified data from the accounting and 
financial data provided by Client to be used for Baker Tilly business 
purposes and with the outputs owned by Baker Tilly. For clarity, Baker 
Tilly will only disclose aggregated/de-identified data in a form that does 
not identify Client, Client employees, or any other individual or business 
entity and that is stripped of all persistent identifiers. Client is not 
responsible for Baker Tilly’s use of aggregated/de-identified data. 
(b) Baker Tilly has established information security related operational 
requirements that support the achievement of our information security 
commitments, relevant information security related laws and regulations, 
and other information security related system requirements. Such 
requirements are communicated in Baker Tilly’s policies and procedures, 
system design documentation, and contracts with customers. Information 
security policies have been implemented that define our approach to how 
systems and data are protected. Client is responsible for providing timely 
written notification to Baker Tilly of any additions, changes or removals of 
access for Client personnel to Baker Tilly provided systems or 
applications. If Client becomes aware of any known or suspected 
information security or privacy related incidents or breaches related to 
this agreement, Client should timely notify Baker Tilly via email at 
dataprotectionofficer@bakertilly.com.  
  



 

 

Baker Tilly US, LLP  
Standard Business Terms (cont.) 

 

Consulting Terms Page 3 of 4 Rev. July 2022 

Section 9. Termination 
(a) This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party upon 
written notice to the other. However, upon termination of this Agreement, 
this Agreement will continue to remain in effect with respect to any 
Statement(s) of Work already issued at the time of such termination, until 
such Statements of Work are themselves either terminated or the 
performance thereunder is completed. 
(b) This Agreement and all Statements of Work may be terminated by 
either party effective immediately and without notice, upon: (i) the  
dissolution, termination of existence, liquidation or insolvency of the other 
party, (ii) the appointment of a custodian or receiver for the other party, 
(iii) the institution by or against the other party of any proceeding under 
the United States Bankruptcy Code or any other foreign, federal or state 
bankruptcy, receivership, insolvency or other similar law affecting the 
rights of creditors generally, or (iv) the making by the other party of any 
assignment for the benefit of creditors. 
(c) Client shall pay Baker Tilly for all Services rendered and expenses 
incurred as of the date of termination, and shall reimburse Baker Tilly for 
all reasonable costs associated with any termination. In the event that 
collection procedures are required, the Company agrees to be 
responsible for all expenses of collection including related attorneys’ 
fees. 
(d) Any rights and duties of the parties that by their nature extend beyond 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement, including but not limited 
to, limitation of liability, confidentiality, ownership of work product, and 
survival of obligations, any accrued rights to payment and remedies for 
breach of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement or any Statement of Work. 

Section 10. Dispute Resolution 
(a) Except for disputes related to confidentiality or intellectual property 
rights, all disputes and controversies between the parties hereto of every 
kind and nature arising out of or in connection with this Agreement as to 
the existence, construction, validity, interpretation or meaning, 
performance, nonperformance, enforcement, operation, breach, 
continuation or termination of this Agreement shall be resolved as set 
forth in this Section using the following procedure: In the unlikely event 
that differences concerning the Services or fees should arise that are not 
resolved by mutual agreement, both parties agree to attempt in good 
faith to settle the dispute by engaging in mediation administered by the 
American Arbitration Association under its mediation rules for 
professional accounting and related services disputes before resorting to 
litigation or any other dispute-resolution procedure. Each party shall bear 
their own expenses from mediation and the fees and expenses of the 
mediator shall be shared equally by the parties. If the dispute is not 
resolved by mediation, then the parties agree that the dispute or claim 
shall be settled by binding arbitration. The arbitration proceeding shall 
take place in the city in which the Baker Tilly office providing the relevant 
Services is located, unless the parties mutually agree to a different 
location. The proceeding shall be governed by the provisions of the 
Federal Arbitration Act (FAA) and will proceed in accordance with the 
then current Arbitration Rules for Professional Accounting and Related 
Disputes of the AAA, except that no prehearing discovery shall be 
permitted unless specifically authorized by the arbitrator. The arbitrator 
will be selected from AAA, JAMS, the Center for Public Resources, or 
any other internationally or nationally-recognized organization mutually 
agreed upon by the parties. Potential arbitrator names will be exchanged 
within 15 days of the parties’ agreement to settle the dispute or claim by 
binding arbitration, and arbitration will thereafter proceed expeditiously. 
Any issue concerning the extent to which any dispute is subject to 
arbitration, or concerning the applicability, interpretation or enforceability 
of any of these procedures, shall be governed by the FAA and resolved 
by the arbitrators. The arbitration will be conducted before a single 
arbitrator, experienced in accounting and auditing matters. The arbitrator 
shall have no authority to award nonmonetary or equitable relief and will 
not have the right to award punitive damages or statutory awards. 
Furthermore, in no event shall the arbitrator have power to make an 
award that would be inconsistent with the Engagement Letter or any 
amount that could not be made or imposed by a court deciding the 
matter in the same jurisdiction. The award of the arbitration shall be in 
writing and shall be accompanied by a well reasoned opinion. The award 
issued by the arbitrator may be confirmed in a judgment by any federal 
or state court of competent jurisdiction. Discovery shall be permitted in 
arbitration only to the extent, if any, expressly authorized by the 
arbitrator(s) upon a showing of substantial need. Each party shall be 
responsible for their own costs associated with the arbitration, except 
that the costs of the arbitrator shall be equally divided by the parties. 
Both parties agree and acknowledge that they are each giving up the 

right to have any dispute heard in a court of law before a judge and a 
jury, as well as any appeal. The arbitration proceeding and all 
information disclosed during the arbitration shall be maintained as 
confidential, except as may be required for disclosure to professional or 
regulatory bodies or in a related confidential arbitration. The arbitrator(s) 
shall apply the limitations period that would be applied by a court 
deciding the matter in the same jurisdiction, including the contractual 
limitations set forth in this Engagement Letter, and shall have no power 
to decide the dispute in any manner not consistent with such limitations 
period. The arbitrator(s) shall be empowered to interpret the applicable 
statutes of limitations. 
(b) Because a breach of any the provisions of this Agreement concerning 
confidentiality or intellectual property rights will irreparably harm the 
nonbreaching party, Client and Baker Tilly agree that if a party breaches 
any of its obligations thereunder, the nonbreaching party shall, without 
limiting its other rights or remedies, be entitled to seek equitable relief 
(including, but not limited to, injunctive relief) to enforce its rights 
thereunder, including without limitation protection of its proprietary rights. 
The parties agree that the parties need not invoke the mediation 
procedures set forth in this section in order to seek injunctive or 
declaratory relief. 

Section 11. Force Majeure  
In the event that either party is prevented from performing, or is unable to 
perform, any of its obligations under this Agreement due to any act of 
God, fire, casualty, flood, war, strike, lock out, failure of public utilities, 
injunction or any act, exercise, assertion or requirement of any 
governmental authority, epidemic, destruction of production facilities, 
insurrection, inability to obtain labor, materials, equipment, transportation 
or energy sufficient to meet needs, or any other cause beyond the 
reasonable control of the party invoking this provision (Force Majeure 
Event), and if such party shall have used reasonable efforts to avoid 
such occurrence and minimize its duration and has given prompt written 
notice to the other party, then the affected party’s failure to perform shall 
be excused and the period of performance shall be deemed extended to 
reflect such delay as agreed upon by the parties. 

Section 12. Taxes  
Baker Tilly’s fees are exclusive of any federal, national, regional, state, 
provincial or local taxes, including any VAT or other withholdings, 
imposed on this transaction, the fees, or on Client’s use of the Services 
or possession of the Deliverable (individually or collectively, the Taxes), 
all of which shall be paid by Client without deduction from any fees owed 
by Client to Baker Tilly. In the event Client fails to pay any Taxes when 
due, Client shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Baker Tilly, its 
officers, agents, employees and consultants from and against any and all 
fines, penalties, damages, costs (including, but not limited to, claims, 
liabilities or losses arising from or related to such failure by Client) and 
will pay any and all damages, as well as all costs, including, but not 
limited to, mediation and arbitration fees and expenses as well as 
attorneys’ fees, associated with Client’s breach of this Section 12. 

Section 13. Notices  
Any notice or communication required or permitted under this Agreement 
or any Statement of Work shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
received (i) on the date personally delivered; or (ii) the date of confirmed 
receipt if sent by Federal Express, DHL, UPS or any other reputable 
carrier service, to applicable party (sending it to the attention of the title 
of the person signing this Agreement) at the address specified on the 
signature page of this Agreement or such other address as either party 
may from time to time designate to the other using this procedure. 

Section 14. Miscellaneous  
(a) This Agreement, any Statement(s) of Work and any applicable Online 
Terms  related to any “Online Offering” constitute the entire agreement 
between Baker Tilly and Client with respect to the subject matter hereof 
and supersede all prior agreements, promises, understandings and 
negotiations, whether written or oral, regarding the subject matter hereof. 
For clarity and avoidance of doubt, these Terms govern Baker Tilly’s 
provision of the Services described herein, and the Online Terms govern 
Company’s use of the Online Offering. No terms in any Client purchase 
order that are different from, or additional to, the terms of this Agreement 
will be accorded any legal effect and are specifically hereby objected to 
by Baker Tilly. This Agreement and any Statement of Work cannot be 
amended unless in writing and signed by duly authorized representatives 
of each party. Headings in this Agreement are included for convenience 
only and are not to be used to construe or interpret this Agreement. 
(b) In the event that any provision of this Agreement or any Statement of 
Work is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable 
because it is invalid or in conflict with any law of any relevant jurisdiction, 



 

 

Baker Tilly US, LLP  
Standard Business Terms (cont.) 

 

Consulting Terms Page 4 of 4 Rev. July 2022 

the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if 
the Agreement or such Statement of Work did not contain the particular 
provisions held to be unenforceable. The unenforceable provisions shall 
be replaced by mutually acceptable provisions which, being valid, legal 
and enforceable, come closest to the intention of the parties underlying 
the invalid or unenforceable provision. If the Services should become 
subject to the independence rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission with respect to Client, such that any provision of this 
Agreement would impair Baker Tilly’s independence under its rules, such 
provision(s) shall be of no effect.  
(c) Neither this Agreement, any Statement of Work, any claims nor any 
rights or licenses granted hereunder may be assigned, delegated or 
subcontracted by Client without the written consent of Baker Tilly. Either 
party may assign and transfer this Agreement and any Statement of 
Work to any successor that acquires all or substantially all of the 
business or assets of such party by way of merger, consolidation, o ther 
business reorganization, or the sale of interests or assets, provided that 
the party notifies the other party in writing of such assignment and the 
successor agrees in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 
(d) The validity, construction and enforcement of this Agreement shall be 
determined in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, without 
reference to its conflicts of laws principles, and any action (whether by 
arbitration or in court) arising under this Agreement shall be brought 
exclusively in the State of Illinois. Both parties consent to the personal 
jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in Illinois.  
(e) The parties hereto are independent contractors. Nothing herein shall 
be deemed to constitute either party as the representative, agent, 
partner or joint venture of the other. Baker Tilly shall have no authority to 
bind Client to any third-party agreement. Though the Services may 
include Baker Tilly’s advice and recommendations, all decisions 

regarding the implementation of such advice or recommendations shall 
be the responsibility of, and made by, Client.  
(f) The failure of either party at any time to enforce any of the provisions 
of this Agreement or a Statement of Work will in no way be construed as 
a waiver of such provisions and will not affect the right of party thereafter 
to enforce each and every provision thereof in accordance with its terms. 
(g) Client acknowledges that: (i) Baker Tilly and Client may correspond 
or convey documentation via Internet e-mail unless Client expressly 
requests otherwise, (ii) neither party has control over the performance, 
reliability, availability or security of Internet e-mail, and (iii) Baker Tilly 
shall not be liable for any loss, damage, expense, harm or inconvenience 
resulting from the loss, delay, interception, corruption or alteration of any 
Internet e-mail.  
(h) Except to the extent expressly provided to the contrary, no third-party 
beneficiaries are intended under this Agreement. 
(i) The Services performed under this Agreement do not include the 
provision of legal advice and Baker Tilly makes no representations 
regarding questions of legal interpretation. Client should consult with its 
attorneys with respect to any legal matters or items that require legal 
interpretation under federal, state or other type of law or regulation. 
(j) Baker Tilly US, LLP is an independent member of Baker Tilly 
International. Baker Tilly International Limited is an English company. 
Baker Tilly International provides no professional services to clients. 
Each member firm is a separate and independent legal entity and each 
describes itself as such. Baker Tilly US, LLP is not Baker Tilly 
International’s agent and does not have the authority to bind Baker Tilly 
In ternational or act on Baker Tilly International’s behalf. None of Baker 
Tilly International, Baker Tilly US, LLP, nor any of the other member 
firms of Baker Tilly International has any liability for each other’s acts or 
omissions. The name Baker Tilly and its associated logo is used under 
license from Baker Tilly International Limited. 
 

 

Acknowledgement: 

The Business Terms above correctly sets forth the understanding of the Client. 

 
Accepted by: 

Signature:   
 

Title:   
 

Date:   

 



 

 

 

Page 4  

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE CONTRACT BETWEEN BAKER TILLY 
US, LLP, and WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

Definitions  
Catch-all definition: Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as 
those terms in the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule.  
 
(a) Business Associate. ``Business Associate'' shall mean Baker Tilly US, LLP 

(b) Covered Entity. ``Covered Entity'' shall mean Winnebago County  

(c) Individual. ``Individual'' shall have the same meaning as the term ``individual'' in 45 CFR 164.501 and shall 
include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(g).  

(d) Privacy Rule. ``Privacy Rule'' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 CFR part 160 and part 164, subparts A and E. 

(e) Protected Health Information. ``Protected Health Information'' shall have the same meaning as the term 
``protected health information'' in 45 CFR 160.103 and 45 CFR 164.501, limited to the information created 
or received by Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.  

(f) Required By Law. ``Required By Law'' shall have the same meaning as the term ``required by law'' in 45 
CFR 164.501.  

(g) Secretary. ``Secretary'' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his 
designee. 

(h) Security Rule.  “Security Rule” shall mean Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 
Health Information at 45 CFR part 164, subpart C. 

  
Obligations and Activities of Business Associate  
(a) Business Associate agrees to not use or disclose Protected Health Information other than as permitted or 

required by the Agreement or as Required by Law.  

(b) Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of the Protected 
Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement.  

(c) Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to 
Business Associate of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by Business Associate in 
violation of the requirements of this Agreement.  

(d) Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of the Protected Health 
Information not provided for by this Agreement of which it becomes aware.  

(e) Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides 
Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of 
Covered Entity, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to 
Business Associate with respect to such information.  

(f) Business Associate agrees to provide access, at the request of Covered Entity, within a reasonable amount 
of time (not to exceed 30 days from the request, unless infeasible to provide in such time, and Business 
Associate notifies Covered Entity of, and reasons for, the delay), to Protected Health Information in a 
Designated Record Set, to Covered Entity or, as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to 
meet the requirements under 45 CFR 164.524.  

(g) Business Associate agrees to make any amendment(s) to Protected Health Information in a Designated 
Record Set that the Covered Entity directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526 at the request of 
Covered Entity or an Individual, within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 30 days from the 
request, unless infeasible to provide in such time, and Business Associate notifies Covered Entity of, and 
reasons for, the delay). 

(h) Business Associate agrees to make internal practices, books, and records, including policies and 
procedures and Protected Health Information, relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health 
Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of, Covered Entity 



 

 

 

Page 5  

available to the Covered Entity, or to the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining Covered 
Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule.  

(i) Business Associate agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health Information and information 
related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual 
for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528.  

(j) Business Associate agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an Individual, within a reasonable time under the 
circumstances, information collected in accordance with Section (i) of this Agreement, to permit Covered 
Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health 
Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528.  

(k) Effective December 7, 2022, Business Associate agrees to implement administrative, physical, and 
technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability 
of the electronic PHI that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity. 

(l) Effective December 7, 2022, Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a 
subcontractor, to whom it provides electronic PHI also agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate 
safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the electronic PHI that it creates, 
receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity. 

(m)  Effective December 7, 2022, Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any attempted or 
successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference 
with system operations in an information system of which it becomes aware. 

 
Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate General Use and Disclosure 
Provisions   
(a) Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose Protected Health 

Information to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, Covered Entity as specified in 
the Administrative Services Agreement, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the Privacy 
Rule if done by Covered Entity or the minimum necessary policies and procedures of the Covered Entity.  

(b) Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use Protected Health Information 
for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal 
responsibilities of the Business Associate.  

(c) Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may disclose Protected Health 
Information for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate, provided that 
disclosures are Required By Law, or Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person 
to whom the information is disclosed that it will remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as 
Required By Law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies the 
Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has 
been breached. 

(d) Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use Protected Health Information 
to provide Data Aggregation services to Covered Entity as permitted by 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).  

(e) Business Associate may use Protected Health Information to report violations of law to appropriate Federal 
and State authorities, consistent with Sec. 164.502(j)(1).  

 
Obligations of Covered Entity  
(a) Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices of 

Covered Entity in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect Business 
Associate's use or disclosure of Protected Health Information.  

(b) Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by Individual 
to use or disclose Protected Health Information, to the extent that such changes may affect Business 
Associate's use or disclosure of Protected Health Information.  

(c) Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of Protected Health 
Information that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such 
restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of Protected Health Information.  
 

 



 

 

 

Page 6  

Permissible Requests by Covered Entity  
Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to use or disclose Protected Health Information in any 
manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity.  
 
Term and Termination  
(a) Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the date signed below, and shall terminate when 

all of the Protected Health Information provided by Covered Entity to Business Associate, or created or 
received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, 
if it is infeasible to return or destroy Protected Health Information, protections are extended to such 
information, in accordance with the termination provisions in this Section.  

(b) Termination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate, 
Covered Entity shall either:  

(1) Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end the violation and terminate this 
Agreement, as well as the Administrative Services Agreement, if Business Associate does not cure the 
breach or end the violation within a reasonable time specified by Covered Entity;  

(2) Immediately terminate this Agreement, as well as the Administrative Services Agreement if Business 
Associate has breached a material term of this Agreement and cure is not possible; or  

(3) If neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.  

(c) Effect of Termination.  

(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this section, upon termination of this Agreement, for any reason, 
Business Associate shall return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from Covered 
Entity, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. This provision shall 
apply to Protected Health Information that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Business 
Associate. Business Associate shall retain no copies of the Protected Health Information.  

(2) In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the Protected Health 
Information is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity notification of the 
conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon notification to Covered Entity, to be made as 
soon as is reasonably possible, that return or destruction of Protected Health Information is infeasible, 
Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such Protected Health Information 
and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health Information to those purposes that 
make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such Protected 
Health Information.  



 

 

 

Page 7  

 
Miscellaneous  
 
(a) Indemnification. Business Associate shall defend and hold Covered Entity harmless from all claims, 

liabilities, damages, or judgments involving a third party, including Covered Entity’s costs and attorney fees, 
which arise as a result of Business Associate’s material failure to meet any of its obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 

(b) Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy Rule means the section 
as in effect or as amended.  

 
(c) Amendment.  The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Agreement from time to 

time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule and the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191.  

 
(d) Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section (c) of the Term and 

Termination portion of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  
 
(e) Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity to comply with 

the Privacy Rule.  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective as of December 7, 2022.  
 
BAKER TILLY US, LLP     WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
 
 
Signature:                                          Signature:       
 
Name: Edward A. Klik, Jr.   Name:       
 
Title:  Principal - Health Care Services  Title:        
 
Date:  December 7, 2022   Date:       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush  & Jas Bilich  

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov 

 
Document Title:  Resolution Granting Authority To The Winnebago County Board Chairman To 

Execute The Documents Necessary To Complete A Loan For $100,000 From 
The Revolving Loan Fund To Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, 
Inc. 

County Code: NA 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, December 22, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $100,000 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  
Fund available in fund #0307 (Revolving Loan 
Fund) 

Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 
Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) have demonstrated a positive effect in growing 
the regional economy in partnership through the County’s Revolving Loan Fund Program that was 
established in 2014. Spare Part Solutions Inc. (SPSI) is an established manufacturing company in 
the Winnebago County and has a proven track record of growth in our region. They are looking to 
purchase 3 product lines from a New York manufacturing firm bringing production to Winnebago 
County. The loan requested in the amount of $100,000 will be over a 5-year term at 7% annual 
interest and create 5 machinist positions. With RLDC and financing from seller as well as equity 
from the company totaling $875,000 for the purchase of the product line of which SPSI is already 
producing parts for.  
 
Recommendation:  
Administration supports the recommendation as proposed with the terms stated by RLDC for the 
loan regarding Spare Part Solutions Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc as co-borrowers. 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
RLDC & staff normally update the entire Board on an annual basis. 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


Sponsored by: John Sweeney    County Board Meeting December 22, 2022 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
2022 CR ______ 

 
RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
BOARD CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 

COMPLETE A LOAN FOR $100,000 FROM THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND  
TO SPARE PART SOLUTIONS, INC. and KEBBY INDUSTRIES, INC. 

 
WHEREAS, Spare Part Solutions Inc. (SPSI) is a female-owned subcontract machining 

and fabrication assembly company with Kristi Sosnowski as the sole shareholder and the 
company managed by her husband Doug Sosnowski, as the President; and 
 

WHEREAS, SPSI’s factory is located on the east side of Rockford, at 5635 International 
Drive, Rockford, Illinois; and 
 

WHEREAS, SPSI and Kebby Industries, Inc, is looking to utilize these loan funds to 
purchase the product lines from Hansford Parts and Products (HPP), a New York based 
company; and  
 

WHEREAS, SPSI is looking to be the producer of three (3) product lines that they are 
already the parts producer of, thereby creating synergy amongst existing affiliated manufacturing 
companies as well as adding another product produced in Winnebago County, Illinois; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that this loan will assist in the creation of five (5) new full-
time equivalent machinist employees for the business over the next two (2) years and is 
estimated to sell $1.1 million worth of manufacturing revenue annually; and 
 

WHEREAS, SPSI, who has great repayment history and business success with a 
previous Winnebago County loan, is seeking a loan to assist with its purchase of product lines as 
recommended by the staff of Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC), of one hundred 
thousand dollars ($100,000.00) amortized at seven percent (7%) for five (5) years from the 
County of Winnebago's Revolving Loan Fund to SPSI and Kebby Industries, Inc. as co-
borrowers, secured by senior mortgage on 5635 International Drive, Rockford, Illinois which 
was purchased in 2016 for two hundred seventy thousand dollars ($270,000) and second lien on 
all business assets as well as personal guarantees by Doug Sosnowski and Kristi Sosnowski.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the County Board of 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois is hereby authorized to execute the loan documents prepared 
by Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) and approved by the Winnebago County 
State’s Attorney’s Office for the loan of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) at seven 
percent (7%) fully amortized over five (5) years to Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby 
Industries, Inc. as co-borrowers, secured by personal guarantees from Doug Sosnowski and 
Kristi Sosnowski. 



2 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Regional Planning and Economic Development Director, County Finance Director, 
County Administrator, and the County Auditor. 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

 JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

 ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

 VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. 

 
Monday, December 12, 2022    [ 1 / 5 ] 

 

Applicant: PIN: 16-04-453-006 (0.61 Acres) 
26,630 Square Feet 

Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby 

Industries, Inc. Principal / Officer (%): Kristi Sosnowski, Owner (100%) 
Doug Sosnowski, President 

Location Address: Website:   http://www.sparepartsolutions.com/  

5635 International Dr. County Board District #: 15 

Rockford, IL 61109 County Board Member: Christopher Scrol 

Jurisdiction: City of Rockford  

Type of Business:  New (Start-up) X Expansion (Existing) 

Industry: Manufacturing 

 
 

Requested County Revolving Loan Fund: Employees: Current Projected 

Percentage
County: 100,000.00$           7.00% interest 11.43%

5 years
Owner's: 250,347.00$           28.61%

Seller finance 325,000.00$           37.14%
EDA Recovery Act 50,000.00$             5.71%

Customer deposits
149,653.00$           17.10%

Total Financing of 
Project:

875,000.00$           100.00%

Investment(s)

 

Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE): 

34 39 

 

Part Time: 0  

Within the first 2 years of business 
operating, from the opening. 

Total: 5 

***Cost of County funds per projected job created: $20,000 
 
 
 

 
Uses of Loan Proceeds: 

 
• SPSI proposes to purchase three product lines and associated inventory and equipment from 

Hansford Parts and Products (“HPP”). 

 
 
 

http://www.sparepartsolutions.com/


 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. 

 
Monday, December 12, 2022    [ 2 / 5 ] 

 

Description of Business & Project: 
Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. is a woman owned business located on the east side of Rockford 

at 5635 International Dr. Spare Parts Solutions Inc. ("SPSI") is a subcontract machining, fabrication and 

assembly company. SPSI also serves in the controls and automation field suppling service and support. A 

female-owned business, SPSI was formed in 2003.  The business is owned exclusively by Kristi Sosnowski 

and is managed by her husband, Doug Sosnowski who is the company's President. SPSI offers mechanical 

engineering and design services, reverse engineering for parts no longer in production, fixture design and 

manufacturing, electronic board design and manufacturing, CNC milling and turning, and welding to 

aerospace specifications. An affiliate, Kebby Industries was purchased in April 2018 with funding from 

Winnebago County. That loan has an impeccable repayment record. The company reports more than 100 

regular customers including its affiliates. SPSI currently occupies two buildings: 12,000 sf in a building 

(purchased in 2014 with RLDC and DCEO financial participation) and an adjacent 7,000 sf purchased in 

2016 with RLDC funding while Kebby operates from a building it owns on N. Kilburn Ave. SPSI proposes 

to purchase three product lines from Hansford Parts and Products (“HPP”) including its Keyseater, Die 

Handler and Die Carts that have an estimated sales volume of $1.1 million annually and a gross margin of 

49%. The purchase price is $850,000. SPSI has been producing these parts as a subcontractor but HPP has 

decided to sell the product lines to focus on subcontract machining. Purchasing these product lines is 

projected to create five local manufacturing jobs and bolster the other SPSI businesses given the synergy 

among the businesses. Mr. Sosnowski continues to oversee operations of all the affiliates while continuing 

to manage the operations at SPSI. He has full-time general managers at SPSI and Kebby to assist him. A 

journeyman machinist, Mr. Sosnowski reports 30 years professional experience. The Hansford Parts and 

Products (“HPP”) product lines have estimated annual revenue potential of $1.1 mil that are projected to 

generate $550,000 in gross profit and $135,000 in operating profit. 

 
 

  
RLDC Recommendation: 

Staff recommends a $100,000, term loan to be fully amortized over five (5) years at 7.0% for the following 
reasons:  
 

1) Participation in this projected is projected to contribute to the planned creation of five (5) 
machinist jobs. 
 

2) SPSI has demonstrated the ability to service existing and proposed debt based on existing 
operations when you consolidate SPSI with its affiliates.   
 

3)  Mr. Sosnowski is a skilled machinist and appears to be a capable manager based on SPSI's 
profitable growth since its inception in 2003. 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. 

 
Monday, December 12, 2022    [ 3 / 5 ] 

 
4) Participation in this project benefits a number of policy objectives including assisting a small 

manufacturer, an exporter, a female-owned business and job creation in a labor surplus area.  
 
5) The proposed loan appears to be well collateralized by a senior mortgage on one of SPSI’s 

industrial properties. 

 
 
 

Other Conditions: 
Kristi and Doug Sosnowski will personally guarantee the loan. 
 
 
 
 

Site Property Tax Information: 

2021 Tax Year Information
PIN(s): Acres Tax Pension

16-04-453-006 0.18 221,220.00$      9,132.62$           520.12$           145.84$           
-$                    -$                     -$                  -$                  

0.18 221,220.00$      9,132.62$           520.12$           145.84$           

Other Entities 8,466.66$        
Winnebago County 665.96$           

TOTAL TAX BILL 9,132.62$        

Fair Market 
Value:

Tax Bill
Winnebago County Portion

665.96$                                         

93%

7%
Tax Bill

Other Entities

Winnebago
County

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. 

 
Monday, December 12, 2022    [ 4 / 5 ] 

 

Company:

Address:
PIN(s):

Estimated Sales:
1,100,000.00$  

8.75% 96,250$              
Sales Tax

DISTRICT 96,250$              
Illinois 6.25%

State 5.00% 57.14% 55,000$              
STATE - Municipality (if within a Municipality) 1.00% 11.43% 11,000$              

County 0.25% 2.86% 2,750$                 
Winnebago County Public Safety Sales Tax 1.00% 1.00% 11.43% 11,000$              

Health Dept (Mental Health) Sales Tax 0.50% 0.50% 5.71% 5,500$                 
Municipality Special Sales Tax 1.00% 1.00% 11.43% 11,000$              

SALES TAX 8.75% 8.75% 100.00% 96,250$              

INCENTIVES
Municipality STATE - Municipality 1.00% 11,000$              

Road Sales Tax 1.00% 11,000$              
2.00% 22,000$              

Winnebago County STATE - County 0.00% -$                     
STATE - County 0.25% 2,750$                 

Public Safety Sales Tax 1.00% 11,000$              
Mental Health Sales Tax 0.50% 5,500$                 

1.75% 19,250$              

State of Illinois
STATE 5.00% 55,000$              

5.00% 55,000$              

Estimated Sales Tax Revenue
Government Entity Incentive Amount %

Municipality 22,000.00$                           23%
Winnebago County 19,250.00$                           20%
State of Illinois 55,000.00$                           57%

96,250.00$                           100%

Sales Tax Breakdown  % of Sales Tax 

Spare Part Solutions Inc.
5635 International Dr.
16-04-453-006

ESTIMATED SALES TAX 
BREAKDOWN

 $                                             1,100,000 

$22,000.00 

$19,250.00 
$55,000.00 

Estimated Sales Tax Revenue

Municipality

Winnebago County

State of Illinois



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. 

 
Monday, December 12, 2022    [ 5 / 5 ] 

 

 

Strengths & Weaknesses 
 
 
Strengths 
 
1)  SPSI has demonstrated the ability to service existing and proposed debt based on existing operations when you 
consolidate SPSI with its affiliates.   
 
2) Participation in this project is expected to contribute to the addition o five (5) machinists jobs within the next 
two years;  
 
3) Mr. Sosnowski is a skilled machinist and appears to be a capable manager based on SPSI's profitable growth 
since its inception in 2003;  
 
4) Participation in this project benefits a number of policy objectives including assisting a small manufacturer, 
an exporter, a female-owned business and job creation in a labor surplus area; and 
 
5) The proposed loan appears to be well collateralized by a senior mortgage on one of SPSI’s industrial 
properties. 
 
 
Weaknesses 
 
1) SPSI is a subcontract machine shop that is dependent on the economic health of its customers who are 
cyclical businesses. Mitigating this risk is the diversified customer base SPSI serves including aerospace, oil and 
gas, printing and material handling.  Also, Kebby, Brakemate and Daley Automation as well as the HPP product 
lines have proprietary product lines to reduce its sensitivity to the business cycle; 
 
2) The guarantors are not financially strong.  They have been reinvesting much of their historic profits and to 
date SPSI has been a marginally profitable business. However, they do have strong credit histories indicating 
that they have managed their personal finances well.  
 
3) SPSI is highly leveraged.  Mitigating this risk is the company’s projected operating cash flow and its financial 
liquidity indicating that it can adequately manage its debt.   Moreover, in the past eight years and over multiple 
loans from RLDC, SPSI has demonstrated an impeccable repayment record. 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
2. Site Map of the location 
3. Tax Information 



12/6/22, 10:39 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/3

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

Corporation File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

cyberdriveillinois.com is now ilsos.gov

Office of the Secretary of State Jesse White  

File Number 62828528

Entity Name SPARE PART SOLUTIONS, INC.

Status
ACTIVE

Entity Type
CORPORATION

Type of Corp
DOMESTIC BCA

Incorporation Date (Domestic)
Friday, 11 April 2003

State
ILLINOIS

Duration Date
PERPETUAL

Name



12/6/22, 10:39 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/3

Annual Report

Officers

Assumed Name

DOUGLAS PAUL SOSNOWSKI

Address
5885 DEB ELLEN DR 
ROCKFORD , IL 61109

Change Date
Tuesday, 12 June 2007

Filing Date
Wednesday, 27 April 2022

For Year
2022

President 
Name & Address
DOUGLAS SOSNOWSKI 5885 DEB ELLEN DRIVE ROCKFORD 61109

Secretary 
Name & Address
VACANT

ACTIVE
WARD CNC MACHINING

ACTIVE
PRESS PART SOLUTIONS

INACTIVE
DALEY AUTOMATION

ACTIVE
INTEGRA MACHINE



12/6/22, 10:39 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 3/3

Tue Dec 06 2022This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

Return to Search 

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

(One Certificate per Transaction)

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/


12/6/22, 10:40 AM Parcel Summary

imsserver.wingis.local/ParcelSummary.aspx?PIN=1604453006 1/3

5635 INTERNATIONAL DR

Parcel Number 
16-04-453-006

Alternate Parcel Number 
256D784

Owner Name and Address
FP DEVELOPMENT LLC, 
3374 PRECISION DR    
ROCKFORD, IL 61109

WinGIS | WinGIS, Winnebago County

+
−



12/6/22, 10:40 AM Parcel Summary

imsserver.wingis.local/ParcelSummary.aspx?PIN=1604453006 2/3

Property Size 
Sq. Feet: 26630   -   Acres: 0.61

Property Use
Ind Land + Improve (0081)

Legal Description
PLAT NO 3 SANDY HOLLOW INDUSTRIAL PARK BNG PT SE1/4 SE1/4 SEC 4-43-2 LOT 24

Zoning District: I1 

Tax Information

FP DEVELOPMENT LLC, 
3374 PRECISION DR 
ROCKFORD, IL 61109 
Trust Number:
Year Fair Market Value Total Tax Bill Total Code
2021 $221,220.00 $9,132.62 127

There are currently no exemptions to display for this PIN

School District

Assessor Information

Township: 
CHERRY VALLEY 
Danielle Giacomazzo 
4875 Blackhawk Rd 
Rockford, IL 61109 
8158742119 

Sales History

Date Sale Type Amount Doc. No.
12/28/2016 12:00:00 AM YR (SalesHistoryCodes.aspx) $270,000.00 20171000568
9/20/2007 12:00:00 AM WD (SalesHistoryCodes.aspx) $250,000.00 0760893
5/20/1996 12:00:00 AM MISC (SalesHistoryCodes.aspx) $210,000.00 9626460
8/30/1995 12:00:00 AM MISC (SalesHistoryCodes.aspx) $25,000.00 9535469

Flood Zone

In/Out Flood Zone Type
OUT X



http://imsserver.wingis.local/SalesHistoryCodes.aspx
http://imsserver.wingis.local/SalesHistoryCodes.aspx
http://imsserver.wingis.local/SalesHistoryCodes.aspx
http://imsserver.wingis.local/SalesHistoryCodes.aspx


Paid on 
09/02/2022

256D784 16-04-453-006

3374 PRECISION DR
FP DEVELOPMENT LLC

76694

1

*$RE16044530061$*
Property Code

256D784 16-04-453-006

Parcel ID

Paid on 
06/07/2022

ROCKFORD IL  61109-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/10/2022

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2021 Parcel ID: 16-04-453-006

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

520.120.7054512.470.7259WINNEBAGO COUNTY
145.840.1978153.700.2177- PENSION

73.220.099371.940.1019FOREST PRESERVE
3.540.00483.810.0054- PENSION

92.020.124891.920.1302CHERRY VALLEY TOWNSHIP
1,022.911.38731,073.331.5203ROCKFORD CITY

920.791.2488899.451.2740- PENSION

684.480.9283664.630.9414ROCKFORD PARK DISTRICT
33.620.045644.340.0628- PENSION

127.630.1731126.730.1795FOUR RIVERS SANITATION AUTHO
302.530.4103306.620.4343ROCKFORD CITY LIBRARY
59.800.081158.600.0830GREATER RKFD AIRPORT
10.620.014411.080.0157- PENSION

4,396.835.96314,384.756.2107ROCKFORD SCHOOL DIST 205
222.310.3015264.750.3750- PENSION

336.520.4564325.820.4615COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

179.840.2439179.680.2545CHERRY VALLEY TWSP ROAD

Totals: 12.9938 9,173.62 12.3859 9,132.62

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-874-2119
$9,132.62

Fair Market Value:

221,220

Location of

5635 INTERNATIONAL DR Property:

2

09/09/2022 $0.00

Property Code

256D784

*$RE16044530062$*
Parcel ID

16-04-453-006

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

73,734
0
0

73,734
1.0000
73,734

0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 73,734
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $9,132.62
Tax Rate for Tax Code 127 12.3859
Taxable Value 73,734

    Formula for Tax Calculation

FP DEVELOPMENT LLC
3374 PRECISION DR
ROCKFORD IL  61109-

3374 PRECISION DR

ROCKFORD IL  61109-

FP DEVELOPMENT LLC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2021

PLAT NO 3 SANDY HOLLOW INDUSTRIAL PARK BNG PT SE1/4 SE1

Reason for Change Signature

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

County Board Meeting 
Thursday, March 28, 2019 

Rockford Local Development Council (RLDC) 
Manages the Revolving Loan Fund Program on behalf of Winnebago County 

RLDC Agreement approved November 26, 2014 
 

John Phelps 
Executive Director of RLDC 
#815-987-8675 

http://rldc.us/index.asp 
120 West State Street, Suite 306 

Rockford, IL  61101 
 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROCESS IN A NUTSHELL 
(Assuming approval at each step) 

 

 

• Program is used for Gap Financing, examples of use... 
o Land & Building 
o Equipment & Machinery 
o Working Capital 

 
October 11, 2016 State of Illinois letter relinquishing reporting requirements. 

 

Business 
needs a 

loan 

RLDC 
reviews 

application 

Economic Development 
Committee  

Reviews loan 

County Board 
Reviews loan 

RLDC 
Loan is 

executed 

http://rldc.us/index.asp


Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

County Board Meeting 
Thursday, March 28, 2019 

Origin of Funding for Revolving Loan Fund Program 

 

 

 

 

• NOT connected with the County’s General Fund, operating costs, etc. 
o It’s a stand-alone fund 

• No liability to Winnebago County 
• Fund generates interest 

o Interest covers management fees 
o Balance grows account 

Activity Summary 

• Since September 28, 2015 through today (March 28, 2019) 
o 11 loans processed 

 Including tonight’s 
o $500,500 in loan amounts 
o Estimated 70 Full-Time Equivalent jobs creates 

• Average loan... 
o Amount $45,500 

 Loan amounts have ranged from $20,000 to $100,000 
o Length just over 7 years 

 Loan lengths have ranged from 5 to 10 years 

U.S. Department of 
Housing & Urban 

Development  
(HUD) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Community 
Agency 
 (DCCA) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Economic 
Opportunity 

 (DCEO) 

Winnebago County 
Economic 

Development 
Committee 

(EDC) 

 
 
 

 
DCCA turned into DCEO 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, December 12, 2022   
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov       

 

 
Document Title:  Resolution Abating Property Taxes On Property Located At 6164 All World 

Way, Roscoe, Illinois Specifically Identified As Property Index Number 04-
15-300-020 And Commonly Known As All World Machinery Supply, Inc. 

  
County Code: NA –  35 ILCS 200/18-165 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, December 22, 2022  
 
Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   $ 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  Budget Impact:  

 
Background Information: 
All World Machinery Supply, Inc. is a “one-stop shop solutions provider for aftermarket 
machine tool spare parts, services, repairs, and custom-engineered applications” 
(https://www.allworldmachinery.com/ ) company with its global headquarters & service center in 
located in the Village of Roscoe. This facility has been in this location and operating since its 
construction and issuance of Certificate of Occupancy in 2015. All World facility has built out 2 
phases for approximately 86,820 square feet. This tax abatement would be a one (1) year 50% 
tax abatement on the County’s portion of taxes estimated to be at a maximum abatement amount 
of $12,000. In 2014 all County taxing bodies had previously approved a 5 year 50% tax 
abatement for this site, however due to delays, the original spirit and intent was not fully 
recognized as promised to the business (2014-CR-104). By approving this it would rectify the 
original tax abatement agreement that only recognized 4 of the pledged 5 years as a developed 
property. 
 
Recommendation:  
Winnebago County Administration supports the development of existing properties to assist in the 
growth of the Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) and job growth, as well as the retention of local 
businesses. It would fulfill the original  
 
Contract/Agreement: 
No. 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
County Staff can provide updates of the project as requested. 

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:permits@rped.wincoil.gov
https://www.allworldmachinery.com/


Sponsored by:  John Sweeney  December 22, 2022 County Board Meeting 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF 

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  Economic Development Committee 
 
 2022 CR ______ 
 

 
RESOLUTION ABATING PROPERTY TAXES ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT  

6164 ALL WORLD WAY, ROSCOE, ILLINOIS SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED AS 
PROPERTY INDEX NUMBER 04-15-300-020 AND COMMONLY KNOWN AS ALL 

WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY, INC. 
 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/18-165 the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

(County) may, after the determination of the assessed valuation of its property, order the County 
Clerk to abate any portion of its taxes on the property of any commercial or industrial firm 
located within the County that has expanded its existing facility or has located within the 
County; and 

 
WHEREAS, such abatements shall not exceed a period of ten (10) years pursuant of 

state law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total aggregate amount of abated taxes for all taxing districts within the 

County may not exceed $4,000,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 13, 2014, the Winnebago County Board approved a 

Resolution, (2014-CR-104), which provided for a five (5) year tax abatement at 50% of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois portion of taxes for “Project Orpheus”, for the property 
commonly known as 6164 All World Way, Roscoe, Illinois and more specifically identified as 
property index number 04-15-300-020; and  

 
WHEREAS, after approval, the abatement only affected four (4) of the five (5) years on 

the developed site and All World Machinery Supply, Inc. has requested to uphold the original 
purpose of the tax abatement that was set forth in said Resolution (2014-CR-104); and  
 

WHEREAS, All World Machinery Supply, Inc. has specifically requested a real estate 
tax abatement for a period of one (1) additional year at fifty percent (50%) due to the original tax 
abatement not affecting all five (5) years of the equalized assessed value (EAV) as developed 
property; and 

 
WHEREAS, such abatement shall not exceed a period of one (1) year to fulfill the 

original spirit and intent of the previously approved Resolution, (2014-CR-104); and 
 
WHEREAS, All World Machinery Supply, Inc. has met and exceeded the original 

condition in said Resolution (2014-CR-104) for job creation of approximately 15 or more new 
full-time equivalent jobs by Year ending 2014; and 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the citizens of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, and enhance the economic development within the County, for the County to abate the 
County’s portion of the property taxes for All World Machinery Supply, Inc. for a period of one 
(1) year; and 

 
WHEREAS, All World Machinery Supply, Inc., has agreed not to protest the assessed 

value of the Subject Property or Project during the life of this Abatement without the consent of 
the County for the property commonly known as 6164 All World Way, Roscoe, Illinois and 
more specifically identified as property index number 04-15-300-020 during the term of its 
abatement agreement.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County of Winnebago hereby order the Winnebago County Clerk to 
abate that portion of the County’s share of the property taxes to be levied against the property 
commonly known as 6164 All World Way, Roscoe, Illinois and more specifically identified by 
property index number 04-15-300-020 by the following percentages: 

 
 

Year Taxes From Payable In Abatement %
One (1) 2022 2023 50%

Schedule

; and 
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total of the tax abatement All World 
Machinery Supply, Inc. receives pursuant to this tax abatement commencing with the 2022 tax 
payable in 2023 shall not exceed twelve thousand dollars ($12,000.00). 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, in recognition of the Tax Abatement, All World 

Machinery Supply, Inc. shall not protest the equalized assessed value of the Subject Property or 
Project during the life of this Abatement without the consent of the County. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event All World Machinery Supply, Inc. 
ceases doing business on the property commonly known as 6164 All World Way, Roscoe, 
Illinois and more specifically identified by property index number 04-15-300-020 in the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, the abatement period shall end, and the abatement of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois’s real estate property taxes set forth in this Resolution shall cease. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective upon its 
adoption. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Clerk, 
Winnebago County Administrator, Winnebago County Auditor, and the Winnebago County 
Director of Regional Planning and Economic Development Department. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

 ANGELA FELLARS   ANGELA FELLARS 

 VALERIE HANSERD   VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department |  404 Elm St, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101  
www.wincoil.gov  |  Phone: (815) 319- 4350  |  Fax: (815) 319-4351  |  Email: permits@rped.wincoil.gov 

Memorandum 
Date: December 7, 2022 
From: Regional Planning & Economic Development Department 
Re: All World Machine Supply Inc. Tax Abatement 
  
 
The below abatement schedule is proposed for All World Machine Supply, Inc. 
 

Entity Address & PIN(s) 
Base Assessment Year 

(anticipated) 

 
1st Year of Abatement 

(anticipated) 

All World Machine 
Supply Inc. 

6164 All World Way 
04-15-300-020 

2022 2023 taxes 

The County of Winnebago property taxes on the assessment shall be abated for one (1) year as follows: 
 
Current Year EAV = Abated EAV x 1.00 x County Portion of Property Taxes 
           (2022 assessment year) 
 

Tax Abatement Schedule 
Year 1 = 50% 

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:permits@rped.wincoil.


COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Project Report for: 
All World Machinery Supply, Inc. 

Tax Abatement 
 

 
Friday, December 9, 2022  [ 1 / 2 ] 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
County Board District(s) #:  
4 
 

County Board Member:  
Brad Lindmark 
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
Project Location Address: 
6164 All World Way 
Roscoe, IL 61073 
 
 
Jurisdiction: 
Village of Roscoe  

PIN: 04-15-300-020 
 
Website: https://www.allworldmachinery.com/  
 
Tax Abatement Request: 1 year. 
Overall average is 50% abatement for the 1 year. 
 
County Investment for Job Growth: 
$12,000 Investment / 5 FTE Jobs 
                          = ~ $2,400 / Job 
**(estimated abatement amount) 

 

Project Summary: 

In 2014 Winnebago County and 9 other taxing bodies all agreed and approved to abate the 

property taxes for 5 years at a rate of 50% for what was then referred to as, “Project Orpheus”, now 

commonly known as All World Machinery Supply, Inc. in the Village of Roscoe. This was a collaborative 

effort to bring this development together which they built out 2 of the originally proposed 4 phases in 

the first 15 months, totaling 86,820 square feet of the newly constructed facility. One of the 

requirements within the original tax abatement (2014-CR-104) was job growth, in which they have met 

that requirement and are expecting to add another 5 jobs in the next year, currently they report having 

95 employees in total, 81 in Winnebago County. The ultimate request is for 1 additional year (at 50%) to 

fulfill the original spirit and intent of the County’s pledge to All World Machinery Supply, Inc. Due to the 

level of development that occurred with this project, land being subdivided and platted, also it needed 

the infrastructure to be installed, i.e.; roadway, sewer, water, etc., as well as the collaboration with the 

many different taxing bodies, the project was delayed from what was originally anticipated. Because of 

this, the abatement only affected four (4) of the five (5) years on the site as being developed, the first 

year was abated, but as an undeveloped site (total tax bill for 2014 with the 50% abatement included 

was $261.50 for all taxing bodies). The average of the years 2 through 5 as a developed site was just 

https://www.allworldmachinery.com/


COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Project Report for: 
All World Machinery Supply, Inc. 

Tax Abatement 
 

 
Friday, December 9, 2022  [ 2 / 2 ] 

over $72,000, inclusive of the 50% abatement. Thus, All World Machinery Supply, Inc. has requested 

that the County uphold the original purpose of the tax abatement that was set forth in the agreement 

(2014-CR-104). Therefore, it is estimated that the portion of taxes that would be abated would be no 

more than $12,000 from Winnebago County for the 2022 tax bill, payable in 2023.  

Additional Attachments: 

1. Tax Summary 
a. Tax Bills 2014-2018, 2021 
b. Employment Impact 

2. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
3. Site Map of the location 
4. Resolution 2014-CR-104, Original Tax Abatement 

 



All World Machinery Supply, Inc.
All World Way 6164

04-15-300-020

Taxing District 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Winnebago County

47.08$           5,022.31$      11,775.69$    11,703.42$    11,659.62$    
Forest Preserve

2.61$              468.90$         1,229.02$       1,223.18$       1,230.65$       
Roscoe Township

3.26$              581.54$         1,498.86$       1,533.64$       1,571.84$       
Roscoe Village

14.61$           2,568.20$      6,698.03$       6,899.31$       7,084.55$       
Harlem-Roscoe Fire

16.81$           2,994.60$      7,717.30$       7,915.54$       8,137.08$       
North Suburban Library

6.58$              1,181.79$      3,056.78$       3,128.34$       3,214.49$       
Prairie Hill School District #133

99.22$           17,673.76$    44,753.02$    45,441.10$    45,823.68$    
Hononegah High School District # 207

56.83$           10,166.39$    25,976.53$    28,731.45$    29,319.91$    
Community College #522

10.48$           1,907.14$      5,016.91$       5,229.08$       5,350.69$       
Roscoe Township Road

4.02$              716.01$         1,845.06$       1,871.00$       1,879.77$       
TAX BILL inclusive of 50% Tax Abatement: 261.50$         43,280.64$   109,567.20$  113,676.06$  115,272.28$  

Site: Undeveloped Developed Developed Developed Developed

Total Abated: 763,897.05$  

Tax Year
Taxing District 2021

Winnebago County
TAX BILL 13,071.40$    Only Winnebago County portion

50% Tax Abatement 6,535.70$      

Estimated 2022 abatement amount is based off of 2021 Tax Bill: 7,000.00$      

Original Tax Abatement Schedule 2014-CR-104



Paid on 
07/05/2015

04-15-300-015

530 S STATE STREET, STE 200

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC C/O
ATTY LOIS CANNELL RAMON

222

1

*$RE04153000151$*
Property Code

04-15-300-015

Parcel ID

Paid on 
07/05/2015

BELVIDERE IL  61008-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/05/2015

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2014 Parcel ID: 04-15-300-015

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

34.940.80470.000.0000WINNEBAGO COUNTY
12.140.27980.000.0000- PENSION

2.450.11260.000.0000FOREST PRESERVE
0.160.00730.000.0000- PENSION

3.260.15010.000.0000ROSCOE TOWNSHIP
11.900.54810.000.0000ROSCOE VILLAGE
2.710.12470.000.0000- PENSION

16.810.77430.000.0000HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE
6.190.28450.000.0000NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY
0.390.01820.000.0000- PENSION

95.384.39210.000.0000PRAIRIE HILL SCHOOL DIST 133
3.840.17680.000.0000- PENSION

54.832.52460.000.0000HONONEGAH HIGH SD #207
2.000.09220.000.0000- PENSION

10.250.47170.000.0000COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.230.01060.000.0000- PENSION

4.020.18480.000.0000ROSCOE TWSP ROAD

Totals: 0.0000 0.00 10.9571 261.50

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-270-0591
$261.50

Fair Market Value:

0

Location of

6164 ALL WORLD WAY Property:

2

09/04/2015 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE04153000152$*

Parcel ID

04-15-300-015

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

4,343
0
0

4,343
1.0000

4,343
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 4,343
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $475.87
Tax Rate for Tax Code 192 10.9571
Taxable Value 4,343

    Formula for Tax Calculation

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC C/O
ATTY LOIS CANNELL RAMON
530 S STATE STREET, STE 200
BELVIDERE IL  61008-

530 S STATE STREET, STE 200

BELVIDERE IL  61008-

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC C/O
ATTY LOIS CANNELL RAMON

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2014

COMM NW COR SW1/4 15-46-2 TH S ALG W LN SEC 412.54 FT E

Reason for Change Signature

DUPLICATE

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



Paid on 
08/05/2016

1301 WEST DIGGINS

04-15-300-020

DAVE KOEPP, PRESIDENT, CEO
ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

222

1

*$RE04153000201$*
Property Code

04-15-300-020

Parcel ID

Paid on 
06/01/2016

HARVARD IL  60033-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/03/2016

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2015 Parcel ID: 04-15-300-020

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

3,715.060.81250.000.0000WINNEBAGO COUNTY
1,307.250.28590.000.0000- PENSION

440.840.11310.000.0000FOREST PRESERVE
28.060.00720.000.0000- PENSION

581.540.14920.000.0000ROSCOE TOWNSHIP
2,097.360.53810.000.0000ROSCOE VILLAGE

470.840.12080.000.0000- PENSION

2,994.600.76830.000.0000HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE
1,110.850.28500.000.0000NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY

70.940.01820.000.0000- PENSION

17,186.544.40940.000.0000PRAIRIE HILL SCHOOL DIST 133
487.220.12500.000.0000- PENSION

9,842.882.52530.000.0000HONONEGAH HIGH SD #207
323.510.08300.000.0000- PENSION

1,863.880.47820.000.0000COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
43.260.01110.000.0000- PENSION

716.010.18370.000.0000ROSCOE TWSP ROAD

Totals: 0.0000 0.00 10.9140 43,280.64

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-270-0591
$43,280.64

Fair Market Value:

2,338,860

Location of

6164 ALL WORLD WAY Property:

2

09/02/2016 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE04153000202$*

Parcel ID

04-15-300-020

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

779,541
0
0

779,541
1.0000

779,541
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 779,541
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $85,079.10
Tax Rate for Tax Code 192 10.9140
Taxable Value 779,541

    Formula for Tax Calculation

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC
DAVE KOEPP, PRESIDENT, CEO
1301 WEST DIGGINS
HARVARD IL  60033-

DAVE KOEPP, PRESIDENT, CEO

1301 WEST DIGGINS

HARVARD IL  60033-

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2015

ALL WORLD MACHINERY PLAT (AMENDED) PT W1/2 W1/2 SEC 15-

Reason for Change Signature

DUPLICATE

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



Paid on 
07/21/2017

04-15-300-020

6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

222

1

*$RE04153000201$*
Property Code

04-15-300-020

Parcel ID

Paid on 
05/15/2017

ROSCOE IL  61073-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/02/2017

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2016 Parcel ID: 04-15-300-020

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

8,666.980.79683,715.060.8125WINNEBAGO COUNTY
3,108.710.28581,307.250.2859- PENSION

1,158.760.1138440.840.1131FOREST PRESERVE
70.260.006928.060.0072- PENSION

1,498.860.1472581.540.1492ROSCOE TOWNSHIP
5,358.020.52622,097.360.5381ROSCOE VILLAGE
1,340.010.1316470.840.1208- PENSION

7,717.300.75792,994.600.7683HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE
2,873.500.28221,110.850.2850NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY

183.280.018070.940.0182- PENSION

43,506.694.272717,186.544.4094PRAIRIE HILL SCHOOL DIST 133
1,246.330.1224487.220.1250- PENSION

25,264.782.48129,842.882.5253HONONEGAH HIGH SD #207
711.750.0699323.510.0830- PENSION

5,016.910.49271,863.880.4782COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.000043.260.0111- PENSION

1,845.060.1812716.010.1837ROSCOE TWSP ROAD

Totals: 10.9140 43,280.64 10.6865 109,567.20

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-270-0591
$109,567.20

Fair Market Value:

6,110,100

Location of

6164 ALL WORLD WAY Property:

2

09/01/2017 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE04153000202$*

Parcel ID

04-15-300-020

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

2,036,496
0
0

2,036,496
1.0000

2,036,496
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 2,036,496
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $217,630.15
Tax Rate for Tax Code 192 10.6865
Taxable Value 2,036,496

    Formula for Tax Calculation

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC
6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ROSCOE IL  61073-

6164 ALL WORLD WAY

ROSCOE IL  61073-

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2016

ALL WORLD MACHINERY PLAT (AMENDED) PT W1/2 W1/2 SEC 15-

Reason for Change Signature

DUPLICATE

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



Paid on 
08/13/2018

04-15-300-020

6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

103961
222

1

*$RE04153000201$*
Property Code

04-15-300-020

Parcel ID

Paid on 
05/23/2018

ROSCOE IL  61073-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/08/2018

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2017 Parcel ID: 04-15-300-020

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

8,614.780.77938,666.980.7968WINNEBAGO COUNTY
3,088.640.27943,108.710.2858- PENSION

1,163.160.11241,158.760.1138FOREST PRESERVE
60.020.005870.260.0069- PENSION

1,533.640.14821,498.860.1472ROSCOE TOWNSHIP
5,311.860.51335,358.020.5262ROSCOE VILLAGE
1,587.450.15341,340.010.1316- PENSION

7,915.540.76497,717.300.7579HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE
2,940.000.28412,873.500.2822NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY

188.340.0182183.280.0180- PENSION

44,113.354.262843,506.694.2727PRAIRIE HILL SCHOOL DIST 133
1,327.750.12831,246.330.1224- PENSION

28,249.192.729825,264.782.4812HONONEGAH HIGH SD #207
482.260.0466711.750.0699- PENSION

5,229.080.50535,016.910.4927COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

1,871.000.18081,845.060.1812ROSCOE TWSP ROAD

Totals: 10.6865 109,567.20 10.9126 113,676.06

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-270-0591
$113,676.06

Fair Market Value:

6,209,690

Location of

6164 ALL WORLD WAY Property:

2

09/07/2018 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE04153000202$*

Parcel ID

04-15-300-020

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

2,069,691
0
0

2,069,691
1.0000

2,069,691
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 2,069,691
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $225,857.10
Tax Rate for Tax Code 192 10.9126
Taxable Value 2,069,691

    Formula for Tax Calculation

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC
6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ROSCOE IL  61073-

6164 ALL WORLD WAY

ROSCOE IL  61073-

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2017

ALL WORLD MACHINERY PLAT (AMENDED) PT W1/2 W1/2 SEC 15-

Reason for Change Signature

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



Paid on 
08/12/2019

04-15-300-020

6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

104940
222

1

*$RE04153000201$*
Property Code

04-15-300-020

Parcel ID

Paid on 
06/17/2019

ROSCOE IL  61073-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/28/2019

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2018 Parcel ID: 04-15-300-020

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

8,845.860.77188,614.780.7793WINNEBAGO COUNTY
2,813.760.24553,088.640.2794- PENSION

1,179.150.10991,163.160.1124FOREST PRESERVE
51.500.004860.020.0058- PENSION

1,571.840.14651,533.640.1482ROSCOE TOWNSHIP
5,183.320.48315,311.860.5133ROSCOE VILLAGE
1,901.230.17721,587.450.1534- PENSION

8,137.080.75847,915.540.7649HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE
3,024.580.28192,940.000.2841NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY

189.910.0177188.340.0182- PENSION

43,993.304.100344,113.354.2628PRAIRIE HILL SCHOOL DIST 133
1,830.380.17061,327.750.1283- PENSION

28,679.392.673028,249.192.7298HONONEGAH HIGH SD #207
640.520.0597482.260.0466- PENSION

5,350.690.49875,229.080.5053COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

1,879.770.17521,871.000.1808ROSCOE TWSP ROAD

Totals: 10.9126 113,676.06 10.6743 115,272.28

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-270-0591
$115,272.28

Fair Market Value:

6,438,210

Location of

6164 ALL WORLD WAY Property:

2

09/27/2019 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE04153000202$*

Parcel ID

04-15-300-020

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

2,145,856
0
0

2,145,856
1.0000

2,145,856
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 2,145,856
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $229,055.11
Tax Rate for Tax Code 192 10.6743
Taxable Value 2,145,856

    Formula for Tax Calculation

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC
6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ROSCOE IL  61073-

6164 ALL WORLD WAY

ROSCOE IL  61073-

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2018

ALL WORLD MACHINERY PLAT (AMENDED) PT W1/2 W1/2 SEC 15-

Reason for Change Signature

DUPLICATE

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



Paid on 
08/24/2022

04-15-300-020

6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

17761

1

*$RE04153000201$*
Property Code

04-15-300-020

Parcel ID

Paid on 
05/25/2022

ROSCOE IL  61073-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/10/2022

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2021 Parcel ID: 04-15-300-020

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

10,208.780.705416,971.040.7259WINNEBAGO COUNTY
2,862.620.19785,089.670.2177- PENSION

1,437.100.09932,382.350.1019FOREST PRESERVE
69.470.0048126.250.0054- PENSION

1,984.160.13713,259.070.1394ROSCOE TOWNSHIP
6,835.280.472310,275.190.4395ROSCOE VILLAGE
2,069.540.14304,463.110.1909- PENSION

10,256.540.708716,928.940.7241HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE
3,775.830.26096,249.290.2673NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY

243.140.0168399.780.0171- PENSION

55,084.623.806290,356.263.8648PRAIRIE HILL SCHOOL DIST 133
1,772.820.12253,090.760.1322- PENSION

35,842.192.476659,123.882.5289HONONEGAH HIGH SD #207
923.320.06381,477.580.0632- PENSION

6,605.170.456410,789.540.4615COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

2,260.580.15623,785.110.1619ROSCOE TWSP ROAD

Totals: 10.0417 234,767.82 9.8278 142,231.16

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-270-0591
$142,231.16

Fair Market Value:

4,342,130

Location of

6164 ALL WORLD WAY Property:

2

09/09/2022 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE04153000202$*

Parcel ID

04-15-300-020

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

1,447,233
0
0

1,447,233
1.0000

1,447,233
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 1,447,233
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $142,231.16
Tax Rate for Tax Code 192 9.8278
Taxable Value 1,447,233

    Formula for Tax Calculation

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC
6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ROSCOE IL  61073-

6164 ALL WORLD WAY

ROSCOE IL  61073-

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2021

ALL WORLD MACHINERY PLAT (AMENDED) PT W1/2 W1/2 SEC 15-

Reason for Change Signature

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



Part IV: Employment Impact
12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2025

# of employees transferred 55                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
# of new jobs created -                 5                     2                     7                     -                 10                   3                     3                     3                     3                     3                     
# of Winnebago County jobs retained -                 60                   62                   69                   65                   75                   78                   81                   84                   87                   90                   

Total number of employess 55                   65                   73                   80                   75                   85                   90                   95                   100                105                110                
Average wage (non-management) 57,800           59,000           60,200           61,500           63,350           65,300           66,500           67,800           69,100           70,000           71,000           
Total payroll (all employees) 5,628,700     5,639,300     6,069,600     6,097,900     6,100,800     6,300,000     6,425,000     6,550,500     6,750,100     6,885,000     7,025,000     



12/7/22, 5:21 PM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/3

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

Corporation File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

cyberdriveillinois.com is now ilsos.gov

Office of the Secretary of State Jesse White

File Number 57286296

Entity Name ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY, INC.

Status
ACTIVE

Entity Type
CORPORATION

Type of Corp
DOMESTIC BCA

Incorporation Date (Domestic)
Friday, 23 April 1993

State
ILLINOIS

Duration Date
PERPETUAL

Name



12/7/22, 5:21 PM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/3

Annual Report

Officers

Assumed Name

ANTHONY D. TROXELL

Address
6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ROSCOE , IL 61073

Change Date
Monday, 16 November 2020

Filing Date
Wednesday, 30 March 2022

For Year
2022

President
Name & Address
DAVID J KOEPP 20820 FREE CHURCH ROAD CALEDONIA 61011

Secretary
Name & Address
SAME

ACTIVE
USA MACHINE REBUILDERS INC.

ACTIVE
TITAN MACHINERY SALES, LTD.

ACTIVE
ARROW WORKHOLDING SOLUTIONS

Return to Search

File Annual Report

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/


12/7/22, 5:21 PM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 3/3

Wed Dec 07 2022This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

Adopting Assumed Name

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

(One Certificate per Transaction)



12/7/22, 5:19 PM Parcel Summary

imsserver.wingis.local/ParcelSummary.aspx?PIN=0415300020 1/2

6164 ALL WORLD WAY

Parcel Number
04-15-300-020

Alternate Parcel Number

Owner Name and Address
ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC,
6164 ALL WORLD WAY  
ROSCOE, IL 61073

Property Size
Sq. Feet: 807526   -   Acres: 18.54

WinGIS | WinGIS, Winnebago County

+
−



12/7/22, 5:19 PM Parcel Summary

imsserver.wingis.local/ParcelSummary.aspx?PIN=0415300020 2/2

Property Use
Ind Land + Improve (0081)

Legal Description
ALL WORLD MACHINERY PLAT (AMENDED) PT W1/2 W1/2 SEC 15-46-2 LT 1

Zoning Class: IH
Zoning Description: Heavy Industrial District

Tax Information

ALL WORLD MACHINERY SUPPLY INC,
6164 ALL WORLD WAY
ROSCOE, IL 61073
Trust Number:
Year Fair Market Value Total Tax Bill Total Code
2021 $4,342,130.00 $142,231.16 192

There are currently no exemptions to display for this PIN

School District

Assessor Information

Township:
ROSCOE
Cindy Servant
5792 Elevator Rd
Roscoe, IL 61073
8152700591

Sales History

There is currently no Sales History information available for this PIN

Flood Zone

In/Out Flood Zone Type
OUT X

















 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Facilities Maintenance | 400 W. Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4670 |  Email: wincofacilities@fm.wincoil.gov      

   

 
Prepared By:   Facilities Maintenance 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    December 15, 2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding Annual Fire Alarm Inspection Services 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  December 22, 2022 
 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?          Yes                                           Appropriation Amount:    
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:     Multiple by location                Budget Impact:   None/Budgeted  

 
Background Information:  
Annually the County is required to hire a contractor to perform fire testing services for each of 
the numerous County-owned buildings.   
 
In early November, the Purchasing Department issued an Initiation for Bid (IFB), solicitation 
number 22B-2256. The bid opportunity was sent to numerous contractors, posted on the 
Purchasing Department website, and advertised in the local newspaper, Rockford Register Star.  
A total of four vendors submitted their bids, see Resolution Exhibit A - Bid Tab for the final bid 
results.  The award will be for two years with three, one-year renewal options.   
 
Recommendation:  
Shawn Franks recommends awarding bid 22B-2256 to the lowest responsible bidder, Nelbud 
Services, LLC. 
 
Contract/Agreement:  
The annual agreement will be in the form of a County issued Purchase Order.   
 
Follow-Up:  
Facilities staff will work with the successful contractor to perform the annual fire alarm testing 
services in each County owned building.  
 
         



County Board Meeting:  December 22, 2022 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING ANNUAL FIRE ALARM INSPECTION SERVICES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section; and, 
 

WHEREAS, competitive bids were received for solicitation # 22B-2256 on December 6, 
2022 for the following; 

 

ANNUAL FIRE ALARM INSPECTION SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the bids received for the aforementioned services and 
recommends awarding a contract to the most responsive and responsible Bidder with the low 
rate, as follows:  

 

NELBUD SERVICES, LLC. 
3331 WEST ELM STREET 

MCHENRY, ILLINOIS 60050 
 

 

See Bid Tab for Pricing details (RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A) 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee has determined that the 
funding for the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 

 

VARIOUS ACCOUNTS 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County Director of Purchasing issue an award notice for a two (2) year contract 
term with three (3) one-year optional renewal terms to NELBUD SERVICES, LLC., 3331 WEST ELM 
STREET, MCHENRY, ILLINOIS 60050. 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer,  Director of Purchasing, 
Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



              Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS ANS ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

JOHN  BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Winnebago County Purchasing Department  |  404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4380   |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov 

 

                                                                                                                     RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 
 

BID TAB 
ANNUAL FIRE ALARM INSPECTION SERVICES 22B-2256 

BID OPENING 12/6/2022- 11:00 A.M. 
 
 

 

VENDORS 
 

NELBUD 
SERVICES, LLC. 

PROCOM SYSTEMS, 
INC. 

AFFILIATED 
CUSTOMER 

SERVICE, INC. 

PER MAR SECURITY 
SERVICES 

PRICE FOR ALL LOCATION 
INSPECTIONS $37,765.00 $71,500.00 $39,864.00 $39,256.00 

HOURLY RATE FOR 
REQUESTED EXTRA 

SERVICES 
$115.00 $122.00 $177.00 $120.00 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                 

 

    

http://www.wincoil./
mailto:purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.


County Board Meeting:  December 22, 2022 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING EMERGENCY AGREEMENT WITH TERRACON 

  

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the competitive 
bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in accordance with this 
section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-357(d) (Professional Services), 
2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or 
as provided by State statute; and, 

WHEREAS, in Section 2-332(f) of the Purchasing Ordinance, allowance is made for emergency 
purchases defined as Procurement obtained in circumstances which include threats to public health or 
safety, where immediate repairs to County property are required to protect or prevent against further 
loss or damage, or where immediate action is needed to prevent or minimize serious disruption to 
County services; and, 

WHEREAS, an emergency situation occurred in the old County Courthouse at 403 Elm Street and 
the Courthouse at 400 West State Street when a fire started in the old Courthouse basement on the 
evening of November 5, which caused extensive damage and requires Emergency Fire Mitigation Services; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed Resolution Exhibit A - Terracon Agreement and Resolution 
Exhibit B - Emergency Purchase Justification Form received for the aforementioned project and 
agrees with the emergency awarding of an agreement; and,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

that the County has issued, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, a services agreement with TERRACON, 
192 EXCHANGE BOULEVARD, GLENDALE HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 60139.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Financial Officer, County Administrator, Facilities 
Engineer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.                 

 



 
                                                                        Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A















RESOLUTION EXHIBIT B 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  
4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.WinnebagoAnimals.org  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: wcas@wincoil.us 
     

 
Prepared By:   Animal Services Department 
Committee:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:   December 15, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code of  

Ordinances Regarding Registration Fees for Dogs and Cats    
 

County Code:   Sec. 14-116 – Fee Schedule        
Board Meeting Date: December 22, 2022 
Budget Information: 
 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                           Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact:   N/A 

 
Background Information:    
The Winnebago County Ordinance (as well as State law) requires that all cats and dogs kept within the 
County must be inoculated against rabies and registered.  State law requires that there be different 
registration fees for dogs and cats who are fertile and those who have been spayed or neutered.  
Registration fees have not been adjusted since 2008.  Since that time, annual registration fees have been: 
 

Dog fertile:  $40 
Dog altered:    $25 
Cat fertile: $30 
Cat altered: $20 

 
Recommendation: To amend ordinance to increase fees by $5 for altered dogs and cats and $10 for fertile 
dogs and cats. Amended fees as follows: 
 

Dog fertile:  $50 
Dog altered:  $30 
Cat fertile:  $40 
Cat altered:  $25 

 
Legal Review:  SAO prepared draft amendment to Sec. 14-116 – Fee Schedule. 
 
Follow-Up:   Winnebago County Animal Services will communicate the revised dog and cat registration 
fees when the 2023 registration tags are distributed. 

http://www.winnebagoanimals.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


                 County Board Meeting 
          December 22, 2022 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2022 CO _____ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY:  KEITH MCDONALD 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF THE 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES REGARDING REGISTRATION 
FEES FOR DOGS AND CATS 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances is entitled 
“Animal Control Ordinance of Winnebago County”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Animal Control Ordinance of Winnebago County sets 
forth fees and charges for services rendered and registration of dogs and cats; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Animal Control Act, 510 ILCS 5/1 et seq., enables the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois to charge residents fees for registration of dogs and cats, provided that the 
registration fee of altered animals is at least ten dollars ($10.00) less than the registration fee of 
unaltered animals; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Animal Control Act promotes the general public health and 
welfare in that it provides a structure to minimize the possibility of rabies transmission, including 
a requirement that county animal registration be accompanied by proof that said animal is 
inoculated against rabies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago charges county residents registration fees to help 
provide funding for the implementation of a well-functioning Animal Services division; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago recognizes that costs of maintaining a responsible 
and well-functioning Animal Services division have increased since the last registration fee 
increase in 2008; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending that the following registration fee 
changes be enacted. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code 
of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 



Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release of the 
animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the dog is 
under one year of age, annually .....$ 30.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....50.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually 

.....25.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(2)  Cat registration: ..... 
a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the cat is 

under one year of age, annually .....25.00 
b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....40.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually 

.....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-approved 
identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and receive 
preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 



d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 
2. Per adult cat .....20.00 

b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three months of 
age .....5.00 

c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, cat or 

other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at owner's 

home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian performing 
the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of the animal indicating 
that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income county residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social 
Security Disability Benefits Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee reduction 
at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this 
code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 of the Illinois Animal 
Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter amended, including maintaining a 
minimum differential often $10.00 between altered and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that 
differential to be deposited county animal population control fund or in the state's pet 
population control fund and b) that any such reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet 
owners to become in compliance with sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in subsection 
(7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and handling charge fees 
set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the number of animals being held 
at the county shelter. The animal services administrator shall provide a report to the county 
administrator each month which sets forth the fees that have been modified, or waived in each 
subsection above, including the total values of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Administrator and 
Administrator of the Winnebago County Animal Services Department. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



             Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS ANS ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

JOHN  BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



1 
 

County Board Meeting 
December 22, 2022 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2022 CO ____ 

 
SPONSORED BY:  JOHN GUEVARA 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE II, DIVISION  4 OF THE 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE RELATING TO THE RULES OF 
PROCEDURE OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their Rules of Procedure, as currently contained in Division 4 of Chapter 2, Article 
II, of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to section 7(c) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act, (5 ILCS 

120/7(c)) (the “Act”), “A majority of the public body may allow a member to attend a 
meeting by other means only in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules adopted 
by the public body”; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board has determined that it is appropriate to 

adopt procedures to allow members of the public body to attend meetings of the public 
body by other means (video or audio conference), and satisfy the requirements of the Act 
and as further provided herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board also desires to adopt a rule regarding 

the establishment of seating positions of board members for County Board meetings.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Sections 2-91 and 2-92 of the 
Winnebago County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
Section 2-91. Attendance by Other Means (Video or Audio Conference)  

(a) In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et. seq.), a County 
Board member may attend regular or special meetings for all public bodies of the County 
Board by other means (video or audio conference) if the member is prevented from 
physically attending because of: 

  (1) personal illness or disability; 

  (2) employment purposes or the business of the public body; or 

(3) a family or other emergency.  



2 
 

(b) A member wishing to attend a regular or special meeting by other means must notify 
the Clerk of the County Board and County Board Office at least seven (7) days before the 
meeting, unless advance notice is impractical.  

(c) After a roll call vote establishing that a quorum is physically present, any member 
physically present may make a motion to permit another member to participate by other 
means. Such motion shall include the reason for the absence. 

(d) All members physically present are permitted to vote on whether such participation 
will be allowed and the motion must be approved by a vote of a majority of those 
members physically present. 

(e) A member attending by other means shall be considered present at the meeting and 
entitled to discuss and vote on any matter before the public body, as if the member were 
physically present at the meeting. The meeting minutes shall reflect if a member is 
attending by other means. 

(f) A member shall maintain proper decorum as if the member were physically present at 
the meeting and comply with all county board rules and procedures previously adopted 
and adhered to. 

(g) The member attending by other means and all members physically present must be 
able to communicate effectively, and members of the public must be able to hear all 
discussion, testimony and votes.  

(h) The Chairman may terminate attendance by other means in the event conditions of (f) 
and (g) are not met. 

(i) No more than two (2) members may attend a meeting by other means without being 
physically present at the meeting location. Attendance by other means shall be limited to 
four (4) times in a calendar year.  

(j) Attendance by other means by any member is prohibited for closed sessions. 

Section 2-92. Seating Positions for County Board meetings 

The caucus leader of the majority party shall establish the seating positions of board 
members for County Board meetings.   
 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Board Chairman and the 
Chairmen of the Republican and Democratic caucuses and shall direct that the Department 
of Information Technology take appropriate action to revise the Code of Ordinances on the 
County Website so as to be consistent with the terms of this Ordinance. 
 



3 
 

   Respectfully submitted, 
 

                                            OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
AGREE       DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
John Butitta             John Butitta 
 
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
Michael Thompson            Michael Thompson 
 
_________________________________           ________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      ________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      _________________________________ 
Valerie Hanserd         Valerie Hanserd 
 
__________________________________        __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
   
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this ______ day of ___________________, 2022.  
  
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph V. Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 



Section 2-91. Attendance by Other Means (Video or Audio Conference)  

(a) In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et. seq.), a County 
Board member may attend regular or special meetings for all public bodies of the County 
Board by other means (video or audio conference) if the member is prevented from 
physically attending because of: 

  (1) personal illness or disability; 

  (2) employment purposes or the business of the public body; or 

(3) a family or other emergency.  

(b) A member wishing to attend a regular or special meeting by other means must notify the 
Clerk of the County Board and County Board Office at least seven (7) days before the 
meeting, unless advance notice is impractical.  

(c) After a roll call vote establishing that a quorum is physically present, any member 
physically present may make a motion to permit another member to participate by other 
means. Such motion shall include the reason for the absence. 

(d) All members physically present are permitted to vote on whether such participation will 
be allowed and the motion must be approved by a vote of a majority of those members 
physically present. 

(e) A member attending by other means shall be considered present at the meeting and 
entitled to discuss and vote on any matter before the public body, as if the member were 
physically present at the meeting. The meeting minutes shall reflect if a member is 
attending by other means. 

(f) A member shall maintain proper decorum as if the member were physically present at 
the meeting and comply with all county board rules and procedures previously adopted and 
adhered to. 

(g) The member attending by other means and all members physically present must be able 
to communicate effectively, and members of the public must be able to hear all discussion, 
testimony and votes.  

(h) The Chairman may terminate attendance by other means in the event conditions of (f) 
and (g) are not met. 

(i) No more than two (2) members may attend a meeting by other means without being 
physically present at the meeting location. Attendance by other means shall be limited to 
four (4) times in a calendar year. 

(j) Attendance by other means by any member is prohibited for closed sessions.    

 

Section 2-92. Seating Positions for County Board meetings 

The caucus leader of the majority party shall establish the seating positions of board 
members for County Board meetings.   



Open Meetings Act- 5 ILCS 120/7 

 

(5 ILCS 120/7) 
    Sec. 7. Attendance by a means other than physical presence. 
    (a) If a quorum of the members of the public body is physically present 

as required by Section 2.01, a majority of the public body may allow a member 

of that body to attend the meeting by other means if the member is prevented 

from physically attending because of: (i) personal illness or disability; 

(ii) employment purposes or the business of the public body; or (iii) a 

family or other emergency. "Other means" is by video or audio conference. 

 
    (b) If a member wishes to attend a meeting by other means, the member 

must notify the recording secretary or clerk of the public body before the 

meeting unless advance notice is impractical. 

 
    (c) A majority of the public body may allow a member to attend a meeting 

by other means only in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules 

adopted by the public body. The rules must conform to the requirements and 

restrictions of this Section, may further limit the extent to which 

attendance by other means is allowed, and may provide for the giving of 

additional notice to the public or further facilitate public access to 

meetings. 

 
    (d) The limitations of this Section shall not apply to (i) closed 

meetings of (A) public bodies with statewide jurisdiction, (B) Illinois 

library systems with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of more 

than 4,500 square miles, (C) municipal transit districts with jurisdiction 

over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles, or (D) local 

workforce innovation areas with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area 

of more than 4,500 square miles or (ii) open or closed meetings of State 

advisory boards or bodies that do not have authority to make binding 

recommendations or determinations or to take any other substantive action. 

State advisory boards or bodies, public bodies with statewide jurisdiction, 

Illinois library systems with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of 

more than 4,500 square miles, municipal transit districts with jurisdiction 

over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles, and local 

workforce investment areas with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area 

of more than 4,500 square miles, however, may permit members to attend 

meetings by other means only in accordance with and to the extent allowed by 

specific procedural rules adopted by the body. For the purposes of this 

Section, "local workforce innovation area" means any local workforce 

innovation area or areas designated by the Governor pursuant to the federal 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act or its reauthorizing legislation. 

 
    (e) Subject to the requirements of Section 2.06 but notwithstanding any 

other provision of law, an open or closed meeting subject to this Act may be 

conducted by audio or video conference, without the physical presence of a 

quorum of the members, so long as the following conditions are met: 
        (1) the Governor or the Director of the Illinois 

     

Department of Public Health has issued a disaster declaration related to 

public health concerns because of a disaster as defined in Section 4 of 

the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act, and all or part of the 

jurisdiction of the public body is covered by the disaster area; 
        (2) the head of the public body as defined in 



     
subsection (e) of Section 2 of the Freedom of Information Act determines 

that an in-person meeting or a meeting conducted under this Act is not 

practical or prudent because of a disaster; 
        (3) all members of the body participating in the 

     
meeting, wherever their physical location, shall be verified and can hear 

one another and can hear all discussion and testimony; 
        (4) for open meetings, members of the public present 

     

at the regular meeting location of the body can hear all discussion and 

testimony and all votes of the members of the body, unless attendance at 

the regular meeting location is not feasible due to the disaster, 

including the issued disaster declaration, in which case the public body 

must make alternative arrangements and provide notice pursuant to this 

Section of such alternative arrangements in a manner to allow any 

interested member of the public access to contemporaneously hear all 

discussion, testimony, and roll call votes, such as by offering a 

telephone number or a web-based link; 
        (5) at least one member of the body, chief legal 

     
counsel, or chief administrative officer is physically present at the 

regular meeting location, unless unfeasible due to the disaster, 

including the issued disaster declaration; and 
        (6) all votes are conducted by roll call, so each 
     member's vote on each issue can be identified and recorded. 
        (7) Except in the event of a bona fide emergency, 48 

     

hours' notice shall be given of a meeting to be held pursuant to this 

Section. Notice shall be given to all members of the public body, shall 

be posted on the website of the public body, and shall also be provided 

to any news media who has requested notice of meetings pursuant to 

subsection (a) of Section 2.02 of this Act. If the public body declares a 

bona fide emergency: 
            (A) Notice shall be given pursuant to subsection 

         
(a) of Section 2.02 of this Act, and the presiding officer shall 

state the nature of the emergency at the beginning of the meeting. 
            (B) The public body must comply with the verbatim 
         recording requirements set forth in Section 2.06 of this Act. 
        (8) Each member of the body participating in a 

     
meeting by audio or video conference for a meeting held pursuant to this 

Section is considered present at the meeting for purposes of determining 

a quorum and participating in all proceedings. 
        (9) In addition to the requirements for open meetings 

     

under Section 2.06, public bodies holding open meetings under this 

subsection (e) must also keep a verbatim record of all their meetings in 

the form of an audio or video recording. Verbatim records made under this 

paragraph (9) shall be made available to the public under, and are 

otherwise subject to, the provisions of Section 2.06. 
        (10) The public body shall bear all costs associated 
     with compliance with this subsection (e).  
(Source: P.A. 100-477, eff. 9-8-17; 101-640, eff. 6-12-20.) 

 

https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=84&ChapterID=2  
 

https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=84&ChapterID=2


 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 













































































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: December 22, 2022 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Byron Station Unit 1 Request for Information for an NRC Post-Approval Site 

Inspection for License Renewal Inspection Report 05000454/2023010. 
 

b. Federal Register/Vol. 87, No. 233/Tuesday, December 6, 2022/Notices 
 

c. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs 
Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2;  Clinton Power Station, Unit No. 1; Dresden 
Nuclear Power Station, Units 2 and 3; LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; 
Limerick Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Units 
1 and 2; Peach Bottom Atomic Power Station, Units 2 and 3; Quad Cities Nuclear 
Power Station, Units 1 and 2; and R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant –Request to 
Authorize Use of Honeywell Mururoa V4F1 R Supplied Air Suits (EPID L-2022-LLL-
0011). 

 

d. Byron Station – Material Control and Accounting Program Inspection Report 
05000454/2022405 and 05000455/2022405. 

 

e. Operator Licensing Examination Approval – Byron Station, December 2022. 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a 
Public Notice Renewal of the Federally Enforceable State Operating Permit Rust-
Oleum Corp in Rockford. 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor's Program
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Vehicle for ESDA Coordinator
	Resolution to Fund Water Resources Strategic Plan with ARPA Phase IV Funds
	Resolution to Fund Baker Tilly Professional Services for RBNH
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Granting Authority to Execute Documents to Complete Loan from RLF to Spare Part Solutions
	Resolution Abating Property Taxes at 6164 All World Way
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Awarding Annual Fire Alarm Inspection Services
	Resolution Approving Emergency Agreement with Terracon
	Ordinance Amending Chap. 14 of Winn. Cty. Code of Ordinances Re: Registration Fees for Dogs & Cats
	Ordinance Amending Chap. 2, Art. II, Div. 4 of Winn. Cty. Code Relating to Rules of Procedure of Cty. Board
	Public Works Committee
	(22-039) Resolution
	(22-040) Resolution
	(22-041) Resolution
	(22-042) Resolution
	(22-043) Resolution
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



